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EEEEXPLANATORY FOREWORDXPLANATORY FOREWORDXPLANATORY FOREWORDXPLANATORY FOREWORD    
1. Introduction1. Introduction1. Introduction1. Introduction    
The purpose of this foreword is to provide an easily understandable guide to the most 
significant matters reported in the accounts and an explanation in overall terms of the Council’s 
financial position. The foreword includes an explanation of the purpose of each statement. 
 
2. 2. 2. 2.  The Council’s Accounts  The Council’s Accounts  The Council’s Accounts  The Council’s Accounts                 
The accounts contain the following statements for the year 2011/12:  
 
Statement of Accounting PoliciesStatement of Accounting PoliciesStatement of Accounting PoliciesStatement of Accounting Policies    
This explains the basis on which the figures in the accounts have been prepared. 
 
The Statement The Statement The Statement The Statement of of of of AccountsAccountsAccountsAccounts    
    
Movement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves Statement    
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 
authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of 
Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s services, more details of 
which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are 
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for 
council tax setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to 
or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
        
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement    
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. 
Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be 
different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Balance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance Sheet    
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched 
by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first 
category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the authority may use to 
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory 
limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to 
fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the 
authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that 
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would 
only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing 
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ’adjustment between 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.  
 
Cash Flow StatementCash Flow StatementCash Flow StatementCash Flow Statement    
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority 
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash 
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The 
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amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to 
which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from 
the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to 
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 
authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (ie borrowing) to the authority. 
 
Supplementary Financial StatementsSupplementary Financial StatementsSupplementary Financial StatementsSupplementary Financial Statements    
The Collection Fund StatementThe Collection Fund StatementThe Collection Fund StatementThe Collection Fund Statement    
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing 
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of 
the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local 
authorities and the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates. 
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3. Summary Revenue E3. Summary Revenue E3. Summary Revenue E3. Summary Revenue Expenditurexpenditurexpenditurexpenditure    
 
At the beginning of the year the Council set a Net Expenditure Budget of £9.479million. This 
budget was revised during the year to £9.545 million. The increase of 66k is in respect of the 
use of Improvement and Change Reserve previously approved.  
The table below shows how the actual revenue expenditure for 2011/12 compared with the 
Revised Budget. It is a management report at the end of the financial year before accounting 
treatment: 
 

BudgetBudgetBudgetBudget ActualActualActualActual (Underspend) /(Underspend) /(Underspend) /(Underspend) /

OverspendOverspendOverspendOverspend

££££ ££££ ££££

Net Expenditure General FundNet Expenditure General FundNet Expenditure General FundNet Expenditure General Fund

Environmental Services 3,649,400 3,319,954 (329,446)

Planning, Leisure and Housing Services 3,759,600 3,348,378 (411,222)

Resources 2,440,900 2,389,475 (51,425)

Chief Executives 1,961,200 1,759,499 (201,701)

Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services 11,811,10011,811,10011,811,10011,811,100 10,817,30610,817,30610,817,30610,817,306 (993,795)(993,795)(993,795)(993,795)

Direct Service Org. (Deficit) / Surplus (88,900) 0 88,900

Interest payable and similar charges 10,000 2,490 (7,510)

Capital Charges (1,752,000) (1,751,824) 176

New Homes Bonus (350,000) (342,343) 7,657

Council Tax Freeze Grant (85,403) (86,158) (755)

Net Operating ExpenditureNet Operating ExpenditureNet Operating ExpenditureNet Operating Expenditure 9,544,7979,544,7979,544,7979,544,797 8,639,4718,639,4718,639,4718,639,471 (905,326)(905,326)(905,326)(905,326)

Financed ByFinanced ByFinanced ByFinanced By

Investment Income (593,000) (420,145) 172,855

Investment Interest Smoothing Reserve (400,000) 0 400,000

Improvement & Change Management 
Reserve

(66,000) (65,887) 113

Deficit / (Surplus)from the Collection Fund

(106,471) (106,472) (1)

Revenue Support Grant (1,103,725) (1,103,725) 0

Non-Domestic Rates (3,570,735) (3,570,735) 0

Council Tax (3,446,337) (3,446,337) 0

(Use of) / Contribution to the Council's 
Reserves

(258,529) 73,830 332,359

Total FinancingTotal FinancingTotal FinancingTotal Financing (9,544,797)(9,544,797)(9,544,797)(9,544,797) (8,639,471)(8,639,471)(8,639,471)(8,639,471) 905,326905,326905,326905,326

 
The Council no longer operates a DSO for it grounds and maintenance and cleaning 
operations as a stand alone trading account, but incorporated it into the revenue account. 
Previously, any surplus or deficits on these functions were balanced from an earmarked reserve 
within the Council’s accounts. As the function is now part of overall revenue account this 
reserve transferred into the General Fund Balance. 
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4. Major Variations in expenditure4. Major Variations in expenditure4. Major Variations in expenditure4. Major Variations in expenditure    
    
Key UnderspendsKey UnderspendsKey UnderspendsKey Underspends    
    
Central Support ServicesCentral Support ServicesCentral Support ServicesCentral Support Services                                  £  £  £  £211211211211,000,000,000,000    
Administration is underspent within employee costs £54,000 due to vacant posts and reduced 
hours of some staff, whilst supplies and services are also under by £44,000. Legal is also 
underspent on employee costs £36,000 and the use of external legal services £39,000. Part of 
the Administration budget is being utilised in 2012/13 to cover additional election costs whilst 
Legal services now has shared arrangements with Cotswold, and the underspend partly reflects 
moving to this lower operating cost and the budget has been reduced in 2012/13.    
    
Corporate Policy MakingCorporate Policy MakingCorporate Policy MakingCorporate Policy Making                                  £103,000  £103,000  £103,000  £103,000    
There was a vacant Strategic Director’s post in this service for a significant portion of the year 
which accounted for £59,000 of the underspend and the remaining balance was a reduced 
support service recharge from Administrative Services of £39,000. This reduced charge was 
due to vacant posts being held and reduced spend within supplies and services. 
    
Council Tax, Business Rates and Council Tax Benefit Council Tax, Business Rates and Council Tax Benefit Council Tax, Business Rates and Council Tax Benefit Council Tax, Business Rates and Council Tax Benefit                                                                                                             ££££186,0186,0186,0186,000000000    
Council Tax is an accumulation of smaller underspends such as employee costs £12,000; 
supplies and services £24,000; support services recharge £26,000 plus additional court cost 
fees £8,000. The Council Tax Benefit underspend is primarily additional subsidy and 
administration grant. 
    
LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing                                                                                                £53,£53,£53,£53,444400000000    
The substantial element of the underspend is from license fees being £45,000 above budget 
and the main area of increased income is from taxi/private hire and premises licenses.   
 
PlanningPlanningPlanningPlanning Development Control Applications Development Control Applications Development Control Applications Development Control Applications                                £190,5£190,5£190,5£190,500000000    
This is primarily additional fee income. The total fees were £160,000 above budget, this was 
significantly due to two large applications in respect of West Witney and Carterton that 
accounted for £143,000 plus pre application advice fees, which were new charges that 
achieved just under £32,000. Pre application fees are now included in the 2012/13 budget at 
£25,000. 
 
Support to Elected MembersSupport to Elected MembersSupport to Elected MembersSupport to Elected Members                                    £50,600    £50,600    £50,600    £50,600    
The take up of Members Allowances was underspent by £24,000 and the balance was from 
reduced spend with regard to travel, telephones and general expenses. 
    
Town Centre Properties and Miscellaneous PropertiesTown Centre Properties and Miscellaneous PropertiesTown Centre Properties and Miscellaneous PropertiesTown Centre Properties and Miscellaneous Properties                        £236,700£236,700£236,700£236,700    
Town Centre Properties achieved additional income from the new purchase of the Market 
Square, Witney property of £21,000 plus £75,000 and £61,000 from the Woolgate and 
Marriotts developments respectively. The additional income from Miscellaneous Properties was 
primarily the rent due from the purchase of Galley’s Island, Essex £38,000 and Alvescot Rd, 
Carterton £27,000. 
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Key OverspendsKey OverspendsKey OverspendsKey Overspends    
    
Green WasteGreen WasteGreen WasteGreen Waste                                                                                                £58£58£58£58,300,300,300,300    
This overspend reflects an adjustment in the charge from the Council’s waste contractor for 
additional properties using this service. The budget for 2012/13 received growth of £58,000 to 
allow for the ongoing situation for this budget. 
    
Rent AllowancesRent AllowancesRent AllowancesRent Allowances                                         £159,700 £159,700 £159,700 £159,700    
The overspend represents the net sum of a number of factors. The level of expenditure for 
benefit payments was £21.9m which accrued subsidy of £21.744m, a shortfall of £163,000. This 
sum was offset by income raised for benefit overpayments of £281,000 giving an approximate 
underspend of £118,000. Other grant income and accumulated underspends meant the whole 
account was underspent by £195,000. In recent years the Council has made no bad debt 
provision for benefit overpayments as any write offs or adjustments were dealt with in the 
current year. However, it is felt appropriate to make a provision of £354,500 against the 
current level of benefit overpayment debtors as a prudent preparation for any future risk once 
the universal credit system is phased into operation. 
    
Witney Industrial EstateWitney Industrial EstateWitney Industrial EstateWitney Industrial Estate                                        ££££106,7106,7106,7106,700000000    
The void at the Ambic building accounts for £80,000 of this overspend. 
 
Investment InterestInvestment InterestInvestment InterestInvestment Interest                                          £172,800  £172,800  £172,800  £172,800    
Fundamentally, the economy and investment market has been depressed throughout the year 
which has impacted significantly on the Council’s external fund manager’s performance 
especially within corporate bonds. The overall performance showed a shortfall against budget 
of £323,000 but this was partially offset when the Council received substantial repayment of its 
Icelandic investments that had accrued £150,000 of interest, reducing the deficit to £173,000. 
 
5. Capital5. Capital5. Capital5. Capital    
    
Capital expenditure during the year totalled £6.554 million; within this sum £4.043 million was 
spent on acquiring three investment properties and £625,000 was spent on Disabled Facilities 
Grants.  Other significant items included £259,000 on the Equity Loan Scheme, £246,000 on 
the Burford VIC Relocation, £188,000 on Vehicle Renewal and £212,000 on Flood Prevention 
Works. 
 
The capital programme was financed by capital receipts of £5,587 million, Government grants 
totalling £435,000 with the balance of funding from developers under S.106 agreements and 
other contributions. 
 
An improvement in the Capital reserves position will also be felt by the reversal of the 
capitalisation approved for the Icelandic deposits impairment. 
 
As at 31st March 2012, the Council has capital receipts of £10.057 million plus a further £1.607 
million in grants and contributions. 
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6. Pension Liabili6. Pension Liabili6. Pension Liabili6. Pension Liability (ty (ty (ty (IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 Disclosure)Disclosure)Disclosure)Disclosure)    
    
The estimated future costs of paying pensions to Council employees are shown in the Balance 
Sheet. This is based on actuarial advice.  Although the charge is significant, it is offset by a 
reserve. The balance on the reserve at 31 March 2012 is £24.486 million. It should be noted 
that compliance with this financial reporting standard has no impact on the amount of council 
tax that needs to be levied. 
 
7. Collection Fund7. Collection Fund7. Collection Fund7. Collection Fund    
    
The Council is legally obliged to maintain this fund separately from all other funds and accounts. 
It shows the transactions that have arisen because West Oxfordshire is a billing authority 
responsible for collecting non-domestic rates and council tax on behalf of the precepting 
authorities – Oxfordshire County Council, Thames Valley Police Authority and Parish Councils, 
as well as for West Oxfordshire District Council. The Collection Fund records the income 
received from local tax payers and the money that is distributed as precepts. In West 
Oxfordshire, the Council Tax for a band D property was £81.63 in 2011/12 – the second 
lowest for a shire District Council in the country. This was held at the same level as the 
previous year.  
    
8.8.8.8.  Changes in Accounting Policies Changes in Accounting Policies Changes in Accounting Policies Changes in Accounting Policies    
    

The Council has adopted FRS30 Heritage Assets in accordance with the ‘Code’. This results in 
a change of accounting policy and requires additional disclosures in the Council’s accounts. 
These are shown in the Balance Sheet and in the notes to the accounts. 
 

    



West Oxfordshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2011/2012 

 
 

Page 9 

SSSSTATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIESTATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIESTATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIESTATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL STATEME FOR FINANCIAL STATEME FOR FINANCIAL STATEME FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNTSNTSNTS    

The Authority’s ResponsibilitiesThe Authority’s ResponsibilitiesThe Authority’s ResponsibilitiesThe Authority’s Responsibilities    

    
The Authority is required:The Authority is required:The Authority is required:The Authority is required:    
 

≠ To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this 
Authority, that officer is the Strategic Director; 

 

≠ To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets. 

 

≠ To approve the Statement of Accounts 
 
Statement of Accounts approved at Audit and General Purposes Committee meeting 27 
September 2012 
 
 
Alvin Adams 
Chairman 
 

The Responsibilities of the Chief FinancThe Responsibilities of the Chief FinancThe Responsibilities of the Chief FinancThe Responsibilities of the Chief Financialialialial Officer Officer Officer Officer::::    

 
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of 
Accounts, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 
 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 
 

≠ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 
 

≠ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 
 

≠ complied with the local authority Code 
 

The Chief Financial Officer has also: 
 

≠ kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 
 

≠ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
I certify the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
authority at 31 March 2012 and of its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 
2012. 
 
 
Frank Wilson 
Strategic Director 
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THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTSTHE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTSTHE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTSTHE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS    
    

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENTMOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENTMOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENTMOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT    
    
Movement in Reserves Statement 2011/12Movement in Reserves Statement 2011/12Movement in Reserves Statement 2011/12Movement in Reserves Statement 2011/12    
    

GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital TotalTotalTotalTotal UnusableUnusableUnusableUnusable TotalTotalTotalTotal
FundFundFundFund EarmarkedEarmarkedEarmarkedEarmarked GrantsGrantsGrantsGrants ReceiptsReceiptsReceiptsReceipts UsableUsableUsableUsable ReservesReservesReservesReserves AuthorityAuthorityAuthorityAuthority

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalance ReservesReservesReservesReserves UnappliedUnappliedUnappliedUnapplied ReserveReserveReserveReserve ReservesReservesReservesReserves ReservesReservesReservesReserves
2011/122011/122011/122011/12 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011 8,8968,8968,8968,896 2,3722,3722,3722,372 1,1231,1231,1231,123 11,52411,52411,52411,524 23,91523,91523,91523,915 55,95755,95755,95755,957 79,87279,87279,87279,872

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of services (accounting basis) 5,580 5,580 0 5,5805,5805,5805,580

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 (9,607) (9,607)(9,607)(9,607)(9,607)

Total Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 5,5805,5805,5805,580 0000 0000 0000 5,5805,5805,5805,580 (9,607)(9,607)(9,607)(9,607) (4,027)(4,027)(4,027)(4,027)

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under 
regulations (note 7) (38) 484 (5,607) (5,161) 5,161 0000

Other movements in reserves (4,144) 4,144 0 0 0000

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
ReservesReservesReservesReserves

1,3981,3981,3981,398 0000 484484484484 (1,463)(1,463)(1,463)(1,463) 419419419419 (4,446)(4,446)(4,446)(4,446) (4,027)(4,027)(4,027)(4,027)

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves (note 8) 404 (404) 0 0 0000

Increase / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in Year 1,8021,8021,8021,802 (404)(404)(404)(404) 484484484484 (1,463)(1,463)(1,463)(1,463) 419419419419 (4,446)(4,446)(4,446)(4,446) (4,027)(4,027)(4,027)(4,027)

Balance at 31 March 2012Balance at 31 March 2012Balance at 31 March 2012Balance at 31 March 2012 10,69910,69910,69910,699 1,9681,9681,9681,968 1,6071,6071,6071,607 10,06110,06110,06110,061 24,33524,33524,33524,335 51,51151,51151,51151,511 75,84675,84675,84675,846

    
    
    

    
Movement in Reserves Statement 2010/11Movement in Reserves Statement 2010/11Movement in Reserves Statement 2010/11Movement in Reserves Statement 2010/11    
    

GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital TotalTotalTotalTotal UnusableUnusableUnusableUnusable TotalTotalTotalTotal
FundFundFundFund EarmarkedEarmarkedEarmarkedEarmarked GrantsGrantsGrantsGrants ReceiptsReceiptsReceiptsReceipts UsableUsableUsableUsable ReservesReservesReservesReserves AuthorityAuthorityAuthorityAuthority

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalance ReservesReservesReservesReserves UnappliedUnappliedUnappliedUnapplied ReserveReserveReserveReserve ReservesReservesReservesReserves ReservesReservesReservesReserves
2010/112010/112010/112010/11 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Balance at 31 March 2010Balance at 31 March 2010Balance at 31 March 2010Balance at 31 March 2010 10,43010,43010,43010,430 2,8982,8982,8982,898 1,7341,7341,7341,734 18,11818,11818,11818,118 33,18133,18133,18133,181 30,68030,68030,68030,680 63,86163,86163,86163,861

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of services (accounting basis) (448) (448) 0 (448)(448)(448)(448)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 17,094 17,09417,09417,09417,094

Total Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & ExpenditureTotal Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (448)(448)(448)(448) 0000 0000 0000 (448)(448)(448)(448) 17,09417,09417,09417,094 16,64616,64616,64616,646

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under 
regulations (note 7) (944) (612) (6,594) (8,149) 8,183 34343434

Other movements in reserves (669) (669) 0 (669)(669)(669)(669)

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
ReservesReservesReservesReserves

(2,061)(2,061)(2,061)(2,061) 0000 (612)(612)(612)(612) (6,594)(6,594)(6,594)(6,594) (9,267)(9,267)(9,267)(9,267) 25,27725,27725,27725,277 16,01116,01116,01116,011

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves (note 8) 526 (526) 0 0 0000

Increase / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in YearIncrease / Decrease in Year (1,535)(1,535)(1,535)(1,535) (526)(526)(526)(526) (612)(612)(612)(612) (6,594)(6,594)(6,594)(6,594) (9,267)(9,267)(9,267)(9,267) 25,27725,27725,27725,277 16,01116,01116,01116,011

Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011Balance at 31 March 2011 8,8968,8968,8968,896 2,3722,3722,3722,372 1,1231,1231,1231,123 11,52411,52411,52411,524 23,91523,91523,91523,915 55,95755,95755,95755,957 79,87279,87279,87279,872     
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENTCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENTCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENTCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT    
    

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 NoteNoteNoteNote 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

Net Net Net Net 

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

Gross Gross Gross Gross 

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure
IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome

Net Net Net Net 

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

2,252            Cultural and Related Services 2,292            (273)          2,019             

4,722            Environmental and Regulatory Services 8,034            (3,229)        4,805             

1,958            Planning Services 2,970            (1,761)        1,208             

2,471            Highways and Transport Services 607               (339)          268               

920               Housing Services 24,719           (22,493)      2,226             

2,722            Corporate and Democratic Core 2,808            (487)          2,321             

69                Non Distributed Costs 420               -                420               

950               Central Services to the Public 11,055           (10,248)      808               

16,06516,06516,06516,065                                        Cost of Services - continuing operationsCost of Services - continuing operationsCost of Services - continuing operationsCost of Services - continuing operations 52,90552,90552,90552,905                                        (38,830)(38,830)(38,830)(38,830)                    14,07414,07414,07414,074                                        

2,640            Other Operating Expenditure 9    2,451            (482)          1,969             

(23)               

 Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure    10 3,068            (12,202)      (9,134)            

-                   Surplus or Deficit of Discontinued Operations

(13,296)          Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income     11 -                   (12,490)                (12,490)

(4,938)           

 Pension valuation change to CPI basis - Past 

service benefit cost -                   -                   

448448448448                                                        (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services (5,580)(5,580)(5,580)(5,580)                                            

(3,155)           

 (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non current 

assets                 (95)

 Impairment losses on non-current assets charged 

to the Revaluation Reserve 

-                   

 (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of available for 

sale financial assets -                   

(13,939)         

 Actuarial (gains) / losses on pension assets and 

liabilities 9,702             

 Other (gains) and losses 

(17,094)(17,094)(17,094)(17,094)                                     Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 9,6079,6079,6079,607                                                

(16,646)(16,646)(16,646)(16,646)                                     Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 4,0274,0274,0274,027                                                
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BBBBAAAALANCE SHEETLANCE SHEETLANCE SHEETLANCE SHEET    
    

1st April1st April1st April1st April 31st March31st March31st March31st March NoteNoteNoteNote 31st March31st March31st March31st March

2010201020102010 2011201120112011 2012201220122012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

38,677 42,017 Property, Plant & Equipment 12 41,579
54 109 Heritage Assets 13 99

30,209 30,149 Investment Property 14 35,723
73 55 Intangible Assets 15 100

7,854 1,862 Long Term Investments 16 2,320
120 239 Long Term Debtors 16 469

76,98776,98776,98776,987 74,43074,43074,43074,430 Long Term AssetsLong Term AssetsLong Term AssetsLong Term Assets 80,29080,29080,29080,290

23,861 25,295 Short Term Investments 16 26,925
52 47 Inventories 17 54

4,130 4,855 Short Term Debtors 19 4,399
845 1,278 Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 1,664

0 Assets held for sale 0
28,88828,88828,88828,888 31,47531,47531,47531,475 Current AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent Assets 33,04233,04233,04233,042

0 0 Bank Overdraft 0
(1,200) 0 Short Term Borrowing 16 0
(8,432) (9,248) Short Term Creditors 22 (10,792)

0 0 Liabilities in disposal groups 0
0 0 Provisions 0

(9,632)(9,632)(9,632)(9,632) (9,248)(9,248)(9,248)(9,248) Current LiabilitiesCurrent LiabilitiesCurrent LiabilitiesCurrent Liabilities (10,792)(10,792)(10,792)(10,792)

0 0 Provisions 0
0 0 Long Term Borrowing 16 0

(32,375) (16,586) Other Long Term Liabilities 16 (26,418)
0 0 Donated Assets Account 0
(8) (199) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 38 (274)

(32,383)(32,383)(32,383)(32,383) (16,785)(16,785)(16,785)(16,785) Long Term LiabilitiesLong Term LiabilitiesLong Term LiabilitiesLong Term Liabilities (26,692)(26,692)(26,692)(26,692)

63,86063,86063,86063,860 79,87279,87279,87279,872 Net AssetsNet AssetsNet AssetsNet Assets 75,84675,84675,84675,846

33,181 23,916 Usable reserves 24 24,335
30,679 55,956 Unusable Reserves 25 51,511

63,86063,86063,86063,860 79,87279,87279,87279,872 Total ReservesTotal ReservesTotal ReservesTotal Reserves 75,84675,84675,84675,846  
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CASHFLOW STATEMENTCASHFLOW STATEMENTCASHFLOW STATEMENTCASHFLOW STATEMENT    
31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 Note £000

448 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (5,580)

(1,217) (A) Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services for non-cash movements 

2,942

1,206 (B) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services that are investing 
or financing activities

1,156

908 (C) Reversal of operating activity items included in 
the net surplus or deficit on the provision of service 
that are shown separately in (D) below

110

(908)           (D) Cash flows from Operating Activities include the 
following items (required to be disclosed separately)

26 (110)        

437 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (1,482)

(1,575) Investing Activities 27 170

705 Financing Activities 28 926

(433)(433)(433)(433) Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash 
equivalentsequivalentsequivalentsequivalents

(386)(386)(386)(386)

845 Cash and cash equivalents opening balance 1,278

1,278 Cash and cash equivalents at closing balance 1,664

433433433433 Movement in Cash (Decrease negative, Increase Movement in Cash (Decrease negative, Increase Movement in Cash (Decrease negative, Increase Movement in Cash (Decrease negative, Increase 
positive)positive)positive)positive)

386386386386
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NNNNOTES TO THE ACCOUNTSOTES TO THE ACCOUNTSOTES TO THE ACCOUNTSOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS    
 
1.1.1.1. Accounting PoliciesAccounting PoliciesAccounting PoliciesAccounting Policies    

 
(a)(a)(a)(a) General Principles General Principles General Principles General Principles     
    

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2011/12 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2012. The Authority is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, which those regulations 
require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12 and 
the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).  
 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 

The summary of significant accounting policies includes the following items where they have a 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:-    
    
(b)(b)(b)(b) Accruals of Income and ExpenditureAccruals of Income and ExpenditureAccruals of Income and ExpenditureAccruals of Income and Expenditure    
    

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received. In particular: 

≠ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 

≠ Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 

≠ Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

≠ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 

≠ Interest receivable on investments and interest payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

≠ Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected.    

 
(c)(c)(c)(c) AcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionssss and Discontinued Operations and Discontinued Operations and Discontinued Operations and Discontinued Operations    
    

Acquisitions and discontinuation of operations are disclosed in the body of the statement, where 
material. 
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(d)(d)(d)(d) Cash and Cash and Cash and Cash and CCCCash Equivalentsash Equivalentsash Equivalentsash Equivalents    
    

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable, without 
penalty, on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that 
mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value..  
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.  
 
(e)(e)(e)(e) Exceptional ItemsExceptional ItemsExceptional ItemsExceptional Items    
    

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, 
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to 
the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s 
financial performance. 
    
(f)(f)(f)(f) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Polices and Estimates and ErrorsPrior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Polices and Estimates and ErrorsPrior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Polices and Estimates and ErrorsPrior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Polices and Estimates and Errors    
    

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current 
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances 
and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.    
    
(g)(g)(g)(g) Charges to Revenue for NonCharges to Revenue for NonCharges to Revenue for NonCharges to Revenue for Non----Current AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent Assets    
    

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 

≠ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

≠ revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the services where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 

≠ amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service 
 

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a 
prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in 
the General Fund Balance - Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
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(h)(h)(h)(h) Employee BenefitsEmployee BenefitsEmployee BenefitsEmployee Benefits    
    

Benefits Payable During Employment 
    

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services 
in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken 
before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is 
made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in 
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday 
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
Termination Benefits 
    

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of decisions by the Authority to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority is demonstrably committed to the 
termination of the employment of an officer, or group of officers, or making an offer to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. 
 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension 
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and 
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
    
(i)(i)(i)(i) Post Post Post Post EEEEmployment mployment mployment mployment BBBBenefitsenefitsenefitsenefits    
    

Employees of the Authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered 
by Oxfordshire County Council. This scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Authority. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

≠ The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Authority are 
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc, and projections of future earnings for current employees. 

≠ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, based upon a discount rate derived 
from the yield on the iBoxx AA rated 15-year corporate bond index, as at the Balance Sheet 
date.    

≠ The assets of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Authority are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

o quoted securities – current bid price 

o unquoted securities – professional estimate  
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o unitised securities – current bid price 

o property – market value 

≠ The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:  

o current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 
year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the  services 
for which the employees worked 

o past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 
relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of 
Non Distributed Costs 

o interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as 
they move one year closer to being paid – debited to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

o expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to 
the Authority, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

o gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Authority 
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of 
employees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 

o actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve 

o contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as 
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for 
as an expense. 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in 
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 

            Discretionary BenefitsDiscretionary BenefitsDiscretionary BenefitsDiscretionary Benefits    

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
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(j)(j)(j)(j) Events After the Events After the Events After the Events After the Reporting PeriodReporting PeriodReporting PeriodReporting Period    
    
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is 
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
 

≠ those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

≠ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement 
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect. 

 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts.    
    
(k)(k)(k)(k) Financial Instruments Financial Instruments Financial Instruments Financial Instruments     
    

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

Financial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assets are classified into two types: 

≠ loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted 
in an active market 

≠ available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

    

Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and RRRReceivableseceivableseceivableseceivables    

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They 
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Authority has made, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued 
interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the 
amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. However, the Authority has made a number 
of car loans to employees at less than market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss 
is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate 
service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, 
resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from 
employees, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance 
Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the 
interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to 
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the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less 
than £20,000 is not material and at the current date the Authority has no material loans. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made 
to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

 

(l)(l)(l)(l) Foreign Currency TranslationForeign Currency TranslationForeign Currency TranslationForeign Currency Translation    

The Authority had dealings in currencies other than pounds sterling from Icelandic deposit 
repayments. The Authority uses its own bank to accept all foreign exchange transactions. The 
transactions are converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction 
was effective. Amounts outstanding at the year end are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 
31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

    

(m)(m)(m)(m) Government Grants and ContributionsGovernment Grants and ContributionsGovernment Grants and ContributionsGovernment Grants and Contributions    

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

≠ the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

≠ the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by 
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation 
and Non-Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants 
Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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(n)(n)(n)(n) Heritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage Assets    

Heritage Assets are those assets which are held and maintained principally for their historical,   
cultural, artistic, or educational significance. The Authority’s Heritage Assets are held as tangible 
assets, being public art in locations around the district. They are recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Authority’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, 
some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below. The 
Authority’s heritage assets are accounted for as follows. 
 

≠ Art Collection Art Collection Art Collection Art Collection ––––    this consists of public art such as sculptures and statues, and is reported in the 
Balance Sheet at historic cost which is deemed to be a proxy for market value. The Authority 
considers that obtaining valuations for its public art would involve a disproportionate cost in 
comparison to the benefits to the users of the Authority’s financial statements. This is because 
of the diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable values. The assets are 
deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value, hence the authority does not 
consider it to be appropriate to charge depreciation. 

≠ Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and 
donations are recognised at valuation with valuation provided by the external valuers and with 
reference to appropriate commercial markets for the paintings using the most relevant and 
recent information from sales at auctions. 
    

Heritage Assets Heritage Assets Heritage Assets Heritage Assets ---- General General General General    
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment eg 
where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Authority’s 
general policies on impairment – see note (u) in this summary of significant accounting policies. 
 

The proceeds of any heritage asset disposal are accounted for in accordance with the Authority’s 
general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are 
disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in accordance 
with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts (see 
notes (x) and (u) in this summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

(o)(o)(o)(o) Intangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible Assets    

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority. 
 

Internally generated assets are not capitalised. Expenditure on the development of websites is not 
capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Authority’s 
goods or services.    
 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, 
no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is 
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any 
losses recognised are posted to the service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
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Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact 
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account 
and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
    
(p)(p)(p)(p) Interests in Companies and Other EntitiesInterests in Companies and Other EntitiesInterests in Companies and Other EntitiesInterests in Companies and Other Entities    
 

The Authority is required to consider all its interests (including those in local authorities and similar 
bodies) and to prepare a full set of group financial statements where they have material interests in 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. The Council has no such interests.      
    

(q)(q)(q)(q) Inventories and Long Term ContractsInventories and Long Term ContractsInventories and Long Term ContractsInventories and Long Term Contracts    

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the 
financial year.    

(r)(r)(r)(r) Investment PropertyInvestment PropertyInvestment PropertyInvestment Property    

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. 
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is 
applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General 
Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.    
    

(s)(s)(s)(s) LeasesLeasesLeasesLeases    

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
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The The The The Authority as LesseeAuthority as LesseeAuthority as LesseeAuthority as Lessee    
    

Finance leases 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance lease is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value 
of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the 
obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. 
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

≠ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 
write down the lease liability, and 

≠ a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

 

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the polices 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the Authority at the end of the lease period). 
 

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and 
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from 
revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. 
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
    

Operating leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 
    
The Authority as LessorThe Authority as LessorThe Authority as LessorThe Authority as Lessor    
    

Finance leases 
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, 
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or 
Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the 
Authority’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the 
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in 
the Balance Sheet. 
 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

≠ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease 
debtor (together with any premiums received), and 

≠ finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 
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The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a 
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement on Reserves Statement. Where the 
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future 
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts 
Reserve. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal 
of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are 
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

Operating leases 
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. 
there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and 
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 

The Council is also a lessee/lessor, renting in/out predominately industrial units at market rental 
value. Income and expenditure is taken to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
over the term of the lease.    
    
(t)(t)(t)(t) Overheads and Support ServicesOverheads and Support ServicesOverheads and Support ServicesOverheads and Support Services    
    

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2011/12 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and 
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the 
exception of: 

≠ Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation. 

≠ Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring 
early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale. 

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing 
Services. 

The basis of recharge is determined by the most appropriate cost for the service.  For example, 
payroll and human resources (employee numbers) and office overheads (floor areas). 

    
(u)(u)(u)(u) Property, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and Equipment    
    

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred.  
 

The Council’s capitalisation de minimis is £10,000, except for where the sum of a number of 
similar assets is significant.  Additionally, items below the de minimis limit may be capitalised and 
included on the asset register if, for example, they are deemed portable and attractive. 
 

Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

≠ the purchase price 

≠ any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 
 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority. 
 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where 
gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 

Assets are then carried in the Balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 

≠ infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

≠ all other classes of asset – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the 
asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. 
 

Where there are non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value. 
 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at year end, but as a minimum, 
every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a 
service. 
 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

≠ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gain) 
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≠ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of 
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

≠ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

≠ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement up to the amount of the original 
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land, infrastructure, Heritage and certain 
Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

≠ All operational buildings – straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by 
the Authority’s valuers 

≠ vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight line allocation over the estimated useful life 
of the asset 

 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components, whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
Componentisation is not considered for assets valued at under £1m.   
 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based 
on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
    
Disposals and NonDisposals and NonDisposals and NonDisposals and Non----current Assets Held for Salecurrent Assets Held for Salecurrent Assets Held for Salecurrent Assets Held for Sale    
    

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held 
for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less 
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costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of 
any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is 
not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell. 
 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of 
the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  
 

Amounts received for disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. They are 
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or 
set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). 
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of the non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. 
    
(v)(v)(v)(v) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AssetsProvisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AssetsProvisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AssetsProvisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets    
    

Provisions 
 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For 
instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making 
of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and 
are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.  
 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the at the end of each financial year – where it 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower 
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant 
service. 
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Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered (e.g. 
from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually 
certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the obligation.  
 

Contingent Liabilities 
 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.   
           

Contingent Assets 
        

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Authority.  
 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
    
(w)(w)(w)(w) RRRReserveseserveseserveseserves    
    

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is 
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, and retirement & employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 
Authority – these reserves are grouped together on the balance sheet as ‘unusable reserves’ and 
are explained in the relevant policies. 
    
(x)(x)(x)(x) RRRRevenue expenditure funded from capital under statuteevenue expenditure funded from capital under statuteevenue expenditure funded from capital under statuteevenue expenditure funded from capital under statute    
    

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset, has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the 
Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of 
council tax. 
    
(y)(y)(y)(y) Value Added TaxValue Added TaxValue Added TaxValue Added Tax    
 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
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2.2.2.2. AccountAccountAccountAccountinginginging Standards Standards Standards Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted that have been issued but have not yet been adopted that have been issued but have not yet been adopted that have been issued but have not yet been adopted    
    

From 2011/12 the only accounting policy change that needs to be reported relates to amendment 
to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures (transfers of financial assets)’.  The adoption of 
amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (issued October) 2010 by the code will 
result in a change in accounting policy that requires disclosure. 
The amendments are intended to allow users of financial statements to improve their 
understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets, including the possible effects of any risks 
that may remain with the entity that transferred the assets. It also includes additional disclosure 
requirements where there is a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions around the end of 
the reporting period. The effective date of the standard was 1 July 2011 but we are not required by 
the Code to implement this amended disclosure requirement until 1 April 2012. 
Following a review of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2012, it is considered 
unlikely that the IFRS 7 accounting standard will have a material impact on the financial statements 
of the Council. 
 
3.3.3.3. Critical judgements in applying accounting policiesCritical judgements in applying accounting policiesCritical judgements in applying accounting policiesCritical judgements in applying accounting policies    
 

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The 
critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
 

≠ There is a high degree of uncertainty about the future levels of funding for local government.     
However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an 
indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close 
facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

 
4.4.4.4. Assumptions madeAssumptions madeAssumptions madeAssumptions made about the future and other major sources of  about the future and other major sources of  about the future and other major sources of  about the future and other major sources of estimation estimation estimation estimation uncertaintyuncertaintyuncertaintyuncertainty    
 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the 
Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account 
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot 
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and 
estimates. 
 
The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2012 for which there is a significant risk of 
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
 

≠ Property Plant and Equipment – assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent 
on assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to 
individual assets. The current economic climate makes it uncertain that the Council will be 
able to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the 
useful lives assigned to assets. If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and 
the carrying amount of the asset falls. It is estimated that the annual charge for buildings 
would increase in these circumstances. 

 

≠ Pension liability – the estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of 
complex judgements relating to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected 
to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund 
assets. A firm of consulting actuaries, Barnett Waddingham, is engaged to provide the 
Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 
 



West Oxfordshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2011/2012 

 
 

Page 29 

During 2011/12 the Council’s actuaries advised that the net pension liability had increased by 
£9.898m made up as follows:- 
 
Ø £9.702m actuarial loss; and 
Ø £196k loss arising from pension obligations (£1.551m) being greater than employer 
contributions (£1.355m) 

 
5.5.5.5. Material items of income and expenditureMaterial items of income and expenditureMaterial items of income and expenditureMaterial items of income and expenditure    
 

The Council has no material items of income or expenditure which have not been suitably disclosed 
in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. 
   
6.6.6.6. Events afteEvents afteEvents afteEvents after the r the r the r the BBBBalance alance alance alance SSSSheet dateheet dateheet dateheet date    
 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Strategic Director (Resources) on 19 
September 2012. Events taking place after this date will not be reflected in the financial statement or 
notes.  Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 
31 March 2012, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material 
respects to reflect the impact of this information. 
 
7.7.7.7. Adjustments between accounting baAdjustments between accounting baAdjustments between accounting baAdjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulationssis and funding basis under regulationssis and funding basis under regulationssis and funding basis under regulations    
 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice, to the 
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future 
capital and revenue expenditure. 
 

The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 
 

General Fund BalanceGeneral Fund BalanceGeneral Fund BalanceGeneral Fund Balance    
 

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to be 
paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory 
rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and 
payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with 
proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the 
Authority is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of 
resources that the Authority is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 
 

Capital Receipts ReserveCapital Receipts ReserveCapital Receipts ReserveCapital Receipts Reserve    
    

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which 
are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set 
aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that 
have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
 
Capital Grant Unapplied ReserveCapital Grant Unapplied ReserveCapital Grant Unapplied ReserveCapital Grant Unapplied Reserve    
The Capital Grant Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions that have yet to be used to 
finance capital expenditure. Amounts in this reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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2011/122011/122011/122011/12 General Capital Capital Total Unusable

Fund Grants Receipts Usable Reserves
1

Balance Unapplied Reserve Reserves

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (1,736) (1,736) 1,736
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment 0 0 0
Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties 1,530 1,530 (1,530)
Amortisation of intangible assets (16) (16) 16
Capital grants and contributions applied 1,156 (1,156) 0 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,429) (1,429) 1,429
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (43) (43) 43

Deferred credit - equity loan scheme 239 239 (239)
MRP 283 283 (283)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 35 (35) 0 0
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital Adjustment 

Account 707 707 (707)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 5,846 5,846 (5,846)
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to the 
Government capital receipts pool (2) 2 0 0

Contribution from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 241 (241) 0 0

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (see Note 47) (1,579) (1,579) 1,579
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in 
the year 1,383 1,383 (1,383)

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income calculated for the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements (30) (30) 30

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from the remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements 6 6 (6)

Total adjustments:Total adjustments:Total adjustments:Total adjustments: 38383838 (484)(484)(484)(484) 5,6075,6075,6075,607 5,1615,1615,1615,161 (5,161)(5,161)(5,161)(5,161)

Adjustments between accounting and funding basis
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2010/112010/112010/112010/11 General Capital Capital Total Unusable

Fund Grants Receipts Usable Reserves

Balance Unapplied Reserve Reserves

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (3,783) (3,783) 3,783

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties (156) (156) 156

Amortisation of intangible assets 0

Capital grants and contributions applied 1,112 1,112 (1,112)

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (6,587) (6,587) 6,587Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement (85) (85) 85

Deferred credit - equity loan scheme 144 144 (144)

MRP 130 130 (130)
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement 1,206 (1,206) 0 0
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital 

Adjustment Account 706 706 (706)

Adjustments primarily involving Usable Capital Receipts

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to 

Unattached capital receipts 230 (230) 0 0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 6,827 6,827 (6,827)
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards administrative costs 

of non-current asset disposals
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to 

the Government capital receipts pool (11) 11 0 0

Contribution from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (14) (14) 14

Adjustments primarily involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
Adjustments primarily involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment 

Account

Impairment of Icelandic Loans 5,920 5,920 (5,920)

Adjustments primarily involving the pensions reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (see Note 47) 2,423 2,423 (2,423)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 

payable in the year 1,388 1,388 (1,388)

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 111 111 (111)

Adjustments primarily involving the primarily involving the Unequal Pay Back 

Pay Adjustment Account
Amount by which amounts charges for Equal Pay claims to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement are different from the 

cost of settlements chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements (18) (18) 18

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from the 

remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements 31 31 (31)

Total adjustments :Total adjustments :Total adjustments :Total adjustments : 944944944944 612612612612 6,5946,5946,5946,594 8,1498,1498,1498,149 (8,149)(8,149)(8,149)(8,149)

Adjustments between accounting and funding basis
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8.8.8.8. Transfer to/from Transfer to/from Transfer to/from Transfer to/from EEEEarmarked armarked armarked armarked RRRReserveseserveseserveseserves    
    

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in Earmarked Reserves to 
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from Earmarked 
Reserves to meet General Fund expenditure 2011/12. 
 

Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at Transfers outTransfers outTransfers outTransfers out Transfers InTransfers InTransfers InTransfers In Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at 

2011/122011/122011/122011/12 01/04/201101/04/201101/04/201101/04/2011 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

General Fund:

Direct Service Organisations' Surplus 591              (591)              -                -                   

Improvement & Change Management Reserve 513              (66)                168            615              

Investment Interest Smoothing Reserve 664              -                    -                664              

LABGI and Performance Reward Grant funding 63                (13)                -                50                

Other 541              (55)                153            639              

TotalTotalTotalTotal 2,3722,3722,3722,372                                            (725)(725)(725)(725)                                                    321321321321                                            1,9681,9681,9681,968                                             
 

Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at 

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers 

outoutoutout

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers 

InInInIn Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 01/04/201001/04/201001/04/201001/04/2010 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011

££££000000000000 ££££000000000000 ££££000000000000 ££££000000000000

General Fund:

Direct Service Organisations' Surplus 685               (94)                 -               591               

Improvement & Change Management Reserve 566               (53)                 -               513               

Investment Interest Smoothing Reserve 1,164            (500)               664               

LABGI and Performance Reward Grant funding 63                 63                 

Other 420               (3)                   124          541               

TotalTotalTotalTotal 2,8982,8982,8982,898                                (650)(650)(650)(650)                                        124124124124                            2,3722,3722,3722,372                                 
    
    
9.9.9.9. OtherOtherOtherOther operating expenditure operating expenditure operating expenditure operating expenditure      
 

The Other Operating Expenditure line on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account can 
be broken down as follows: 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

Net Net Net Net 
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

Net Net Net Net 
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

2,363            Parish Council precepts 2,406            

11                 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 2                  

85                 (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 43                 

(144)              Deferred credit - equity loan scheme (242)              

95                 Trading activities - DSOs -                   

476               DSO revaluation loss to CI&E -                   

(15)               Trading activities - Markets & Fairs -                   

(230)              Other income - Unattached receipts (240)              

2,6402,6402,6402,640                                                TotalTotalTotalTotal 1,9691,9691,9691,969                                                 
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10.10.10.10. Financing and investment income and expenditureFinancing and investment income and expenditureFinancing and investment income and expenditureFinancing and investment income and expenditure      
 

The ‘Financing and investment income and expenditure’ line on the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure account can be broken down as follows: 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

Net Net Net Net 
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure Net ExpenditureNet ExpenditureNet ExpenditureNet Expenditure

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

51                  Interest payable and similar charges 94                     

1,600             Loan Impairment (Icelandic deposits) (5,283)               

(578)               Interest and similar income (420)                  

(2,028)            

Income and expenditure in relation to investment 
properties and changes in their fair value (3,841)               

Trading activites - Markets & Fairs (39)                    

932                

Pension interest cost and expected return on 
pensions assets 355                   

(23)(23)(23)(23)                                                                TotalTotalTotalTotal (9,134)(9,134)(9,134)(9,134)                                                             
 
 
11.11.11.11. Taxation and nonTaxation and nonTaxation and nonTaxation and non----specific grant incomespecific grant incomespecific grant incomespecific grant income    
 

The ‘Taxation and non-specific grant income’ line on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
account can be broken down as follows: 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(5,895)            Council tax income (5,959)            

(1,206)            Capital grant and contributions (1,156)            

(860)              Non-ringfenced government grants (1,805)            

(5,335)            Non-domestic rates (3,570)            

(13,296)(13,296)(13,296)(13,296)                                        TotalTotalTotalTotal (12,490)(12,490)(12,490)(12,490)                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



West Oxfordshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2011/2012 

 
 

Page 34 

12.12.12.12. Property, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and Equipment        
 

Movement on balances: 
 

Vehicles,

Land & Plant &  Infrastructure Community Surplus Total

Buildings Equipment Assets Assets Assets PPE

2011/122011/122011/122011/12 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation

Opening balance at 1st April 2011 36,201       8,495        1,522        744             -               46,962       

Additions 473           704           26               1,203        

Revaluation increases/(decreases): -               

  In the Revaluation Reserve 95             95             

  In the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services -               

Derecognition - disposals of assets -               

Transfers to 'assets held for sale' -               

Other reclassifications -               

Other movements -               

Closing balance 36,769       9,199        1,522        770             -               48,260       

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Opening balance at 1st April 2011 (1,275)       (3,671)       -               -                 -               (4,946)       

Depreciation charge for the year (736)          (999)          (1,735)       

Impairment losses (reversals):

  In the Revaluation Reserve -               

  In the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services -               

Derecognition - disposals of assets -               

Other movements -               

Closing balance (2,011)       (4,670)       -               -                 -               (6,681)       

Net Book Value of assets:

at 31st March 2012 34,758       4,529        1,522        770             -               41,579       

 
Vehicles,

Land & Plant &  Infrastructure Community Surplus Total

Buildings Equipment Assets Assets Assets PPE

2010/11 comparators2010/11 comparators2010/11 comparators2010/11 comparators £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation -               

Opening balance at 1st April 2010 35,422       4,672        1,607        726             42,427       

Additions 194           3,823        18               4,035        

Revaluation increases/(decreases):

  In the Revaluation Reserve 3,156        3,156        

  In the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (2,571)       (2,571)       

Derecognition - disposals of assets (85)           (85)           

Transfers to 'assets held for sale' -               

Other reclassifications -               

Other movements -               

Closing balance 36,201       8,495        1,522        744             -               46,962       

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Opening balance at 1st April 2010 (536)          (3,214)       -               -                 -               (3,750)       

Dereciation charge for the year (739)          (457)          (1,196)       

Impairment losses (reversals): -               

  In the Revaluation Reserve -               

  In the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services -               

Derecognition - disposals of assets -               

Other movements -               

Closing balance (1,275)       (3,671)       -               -                 -               (4,946)       

Net Book Value of assets:

at 31st March 2011 34,926       4,824        1,522        744             -               42,017        
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Depreciation: 
 

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation 
charges: 
 

≠ Land assets are generally not depreciated 

≠ Operational buildings are typically depreciated over 30 to 60 year useful lives, depending upon 
the particular asset 

≠ Vehicles, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over 5 years 

≠ Infrastructure, Heritage and Community Assets are not depreciated 
 
Capital Commitments: 
 

The Council has £766,400 slippage under capital contracts as at 31st March 2012 plus other capital 
commitments £3.04 million from the 2012/13 Capital Programme.  The existing capital contracts are 
in respect of Flooding Prevention Works, Council Buildings Maintenance Programme, Leisure 
Equipment and the acquisition of investment property. 
 
Revaluations: 
 

The authority carries out revaluations on all Land and Property to ensure assets are measured at fair 
value, at least every five years.  All valuations are carried out by external valuers, Lambert Smith 
Hampton.  Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies 
and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors. A full revaluation exercise was carried out as at 1st April 2010.   
 

In estimating fair values it has been assumed that: 

≠ The capacity of utility services [electricity, gas, water, mains drainage] are adequate for the future 
use of the properties 

≠ All assets have planning consent for their existing uses 

≠ Tenancies are not subject to any unusual or onerous restrictions 

≠ No contamination exists in relation to property assets [land and buildings] sufficient enough to 
affect value.   

 
Vehicles,

Land & Plant &  Infrastructure Community Surplus Total

Buildings Equipment Assets Assets Assets PPE

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at historical cost 32,529 1,636 1,420 28 4,592 40,205

valued at fair value as at:

31 March 2012 36,769 9,199 1,522 770 48,260

31 March 2011 36,201 8,495 1,522 744 46,962

31 March 2010 35,425 4,672 1,607 780 42,484

31 March 2009 35,912 4,344 1,420 613 42,289  
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13.13.13.13. Heritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage Assets    
    

Art Pottery Total

Ceramics Collection Machinery Assets

2011/122011/122011/122011/12 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuationCost or valuationCost or valuationCost or valuation

1st April 2011 109           109           

Additions 33             33             

Disposals (43)           (43)           

Revaluations -               

Impairment Losses / (reversals) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve -               

Impairment Losses / (reversals) recognised in the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services -               

Depreciation -               

31st March 201231st March 201231st March 201231st March 2012 ----                                                        99999999                                                ----                                                        99999999                                                

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuationCost or valuationCost or valuationCost or valuation 0

1st April 2010 54             54             

Additions 55             55             

Disposals -               

Revaluations -               

Impairment Losses / (reversals) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve -               

Impairment Losses / (reversals) recognised in the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services -               

Depreciation -               

31st March 201131st March 201131st March 201131st March 2011 ----                                                        109109109109                                        ----                                                        109109109109                                        

 
    
14.14.14.14. Investment PropertiesInvestment PropertiesInvestment PropertiesInvestment Properties     
 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000

Rental Income from Investment Property (2,453)           (2,635)             

Direct Operating expenses arising from investment property 269               324                 

Net (gain)/loss (2,184)           (2,311)             
 

 

There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The 
authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 
for repairs, maintenance or enhancement.  
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The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 
year: 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000

Opening balance - 1st April 30,209          30,149             
Additions

  Purchases 4,043               

  Construction 95                1                    

  Subsequent expenditure

Disposals

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments (valuations) (155)             1,530               

Transfers to/from Property, Plant and Equipment

Other changes -

Balance at 31st March 30,149          35,723              
 
15.15.15.15. Intangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible Assets    
 

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an 
integral part of a particular IT system.  Items of IT hardware are accounted for as equipment within 
the Property, Plant and Equipment category.  The intangible assets include purchased licenses and 
other software.  The Council has no internally generated software. 
 

All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over a 5 year period.  This represents the 
period over which the software is expected to be of use to the Council.   
 

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Account, Net Expenditure to Services.  For specific systems, amortisation is charged direct to the 
service using the asset.  For corporate systems amortisation is allocated across all services benefitting 
from the asset.    
 

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Balance at the start of the year:

  Gross value [purchase cost] 104           105           

  Accumulated amortisation (31)            (50)            

Net carrying amount at the start of the year 73             55             

Movements in the year:

  Purchases 1               61             

  Amortisation (19)            (16)            

  Other movements

Net carrying amount at the end of the year 55             100           

Comprising:

Gross carrying amount 105           166           

Accumulated depreciation (50)            (66)            

55             100            
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16.16.16.16. Financial InstrumentsFinancial InstrumentsFinancial InstrumentsFinancial Instruments    
    
(a) Financial Instruments (a) Financial Instruments (a) Financial Instruments (a) Financial Instruments ---- Classifications  Classifications  Classifications  Classifications     
    

The accounting standards in respect of financial instruments were incorporated into the Local 
Authority SORP in 2007. The 2011/12 Code of Practice notes that where they continue to be 
relevant, the transitional provisions of the UK standards adopted by the 2007 SORP remain. 
 

The definition of a financial instrument is: ‘Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity’.   
 

The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial liabilities. These range from 
straightforward trade receivables and trade payables to more complex transactions such as financial 
guarantees, derivatives and embedded derivatives. The Council’s borrowing, service concession 
arrangements (PFI and finance leases), and investment transactions are classified as financial 
instruments.   
  

    Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities     
    A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can 

be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to 
exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the 
Council. 

        

    The Council has no outstanding borrowing as at 31st March 2012. 
  
    Financial Assets   Financial Assets   Financial Assets   Financial Assets       
    A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented 

by cash or other instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.  
 

The three classifications for financial assets under the Code of Practice are: 

≠ Loans and Receivables;  

≠ Available for Sale; and  

≠ Fair Value through Profit and Loss.    
 

The Council’s portfolio of investments consists of fixed term deposits, money market funds, and 
call/notice accounts. Term deposits and call accounts are classed as ‘Loans and Receivables’ and are 
measured at amortised cost. This form of measurement does not change the amount of cash 
received under the terms of the investment.  Trade Receivables (Debtors) are classified as Loans and 
Receivables.  These have been measured at cost on the Balance Sheet.  Money Market Funds are 
classified as    Available for Sale.  
 

Balances in call accounts at 31st March 2012 are shown under ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the 
Balance Sheet, as they represent highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash, with an insignificant risk of changes in value.  
 
The Council does have investments required to be measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. 
 

Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction CCCCosts osts osts osts     
    Measurement at amortised cost permits transaction costs relating to financial instruments to be 

attached to the loan or investment and charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement over the life of the instrument. Where these are considered to be immaterial they can be 
charged in full to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the financial year in 
which they are incurred.  The Council has adopted this latter approach in 2011/12.  
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(b) Financial Instrument(b) Financial Instrument(b) Financial Instrument(b) Financial Instrumentssss    –––– Balances Balances Balances Balances    
The financial assets and liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following 
categories:  
 

Financial Instruments balances 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Investments:

Loans and receivables 1,862            2,320            2,702            4,192            

Available-for-sale financial assets -                  -                  

Unquoted equity investment at cost -                  -                  

Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss -                  22,593          22,733          

Total investments 1,862            2,320            25,295          26,925          

Debtors:

Loans and receivables 239              469              4,855            4,399            

Financial assets carried at contract amounts -                  -                  

Total Debtors 239              469              4,855            4,399            

Borrowings:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost -                  -                  -                  

Financial liabilities at fair value throught profit & loss -                  -                  -                  

Total borrowings -                  -                  -                  -                  

Other Long Term Liabilities:

Finance Leases (1,998)           (1,932)           

Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme (14,588)         (24,486)         

Total other long term liabilities (16,586)         (26,418)         -                  -                  

Creditors:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost -                  (9,248)           (10,792)         

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount -                  -                  -                  

Total creditors -                  -                  (9,248)           (10,792)         

Long - term Current

 
 

    
Soft Loans Soft Loans Soft Loans Soft Loans ---- Balances Balances Balances Balances    
    
Where loans are advanced at below market rates they are classed as ‘Soft Loans’. The 2011-12 
Code of Practice sets out specific accounting and disclosure requirements for soft loans.  
The Authority makes loans at less than market rates (soft loans) for car purchase to its employees. 
These loans are included within debtors and are detailed in the table below: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012
£000 £000 £000 £000

Car loans to employees 92 81 53 63

Long - term Current
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(c) Financial Instrument(c) Financial Instrument(c) Financial Instrument(c) Financial Instrumentssss    –––– Gains and Losses Gains and Losses Gains and Losses Gains and Losses    
    

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consists of the following items: 
 

Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and 

LossesLossesLossesLosses
Financial 

Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial 

Assets: Loans 

and receivables

Financial 

Assets: 

Available for 

sale

Assets and 

Liabilities at 

Fair Value 

through Profit 

and Loss Total

2011/12 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Interest expense -                  

Losses on derecognition -                  

Reductions in fair value -                  

Impairment losses -                  

Fee expense -                  

Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the Provison of 

Services -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Interest income 130              130              

Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 150              150              

Increases in fair value 140              140              

Gains on derecognition -                  

Fee income -                  

Total income in Surpluse or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services -                  420              -                  -                  420              

Gains on revaluation -                  

Losses on revaluation -                  

Amounts recycled to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services after impairment 5,282            5,282            

Surplus/deficit arising on revaluation of financial assets 

in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -                  

Net gain/(loss) for the year -                  5,702            -                  -                  5,702            
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Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and Financial Instruments Income, Expense, Gains and 

LossesLossesLossesLosses

Financial 

Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial 

Assets: Loans 

and receivables

Financial 

Assets: 

Available for 

sale

Assets and 

Liabilities at 

Fair Value 

through Profit 

and Loss Total

2010/11 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Interest expense -                  

Losses on derecognition -                  

Reductions in fair value -                  

Impairment losses (1,776)           (1,776)           

Fee expense -                  

Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the Provison of 

Services -                  (1,776)           -                  -                  (1,776)           

Interest income 209              209              

Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 151              151              

Increases in fair value 218              218              

Gains on derecognition -                  

Fee income -                  

Total income in Surpluse or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services -                  578              -                  -                  578              

Gains on revaluation -                  

Losses on revaluation -                  

Amounts recycled to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services after impairment 176              176              

Surplus/deficit arising on revaluation of financial assets 

in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -                  

Net gain/(loss) for the year -                  (1,022)           -                  -                  (1,022)            

 

(d) Fi(d) Fi(d) Fi(d) Finanananancial Instrumentsncial Instrumentsncial Instrumentsncial Instruments    ----    Fair ValuesFair ValuesFair ValuesFair Values    
 
For each class of financial assets and financial liabilities, an authority is required to disclose the fair 
value of that class of assets and liabilities in such a way that a comparison with the carrying amount is 
possible. 
 
Investments consist of loan and receivables, available for sale and fair value through profit and loss 
investments. Loans and receivables are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost, whereas the 
other two categories of investment are carried at fair value. The portion of debt and investments 
due to be settled within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date are presented in the Balance Sheet 
under short term liabilities or short term investments. This also includes accrued interest for long 
term investments and borrowings, as well as accrued interest for cash and cash equivalents. 
 
The 2011-12 Code of Practice requires the fair values of these assets and liabilities to be disclosed 
for comparison purposes. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction. The fair value 
of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the transaction price.          
 
The Council’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date consisted almost entirely of fixed term 
deposits and Certificate of Deposits with Banks and Building Societies.  The maturity dates of these 
investments were all within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date. None of the investments were 
impaired (i.e. at risk of default).  
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In the case of short term instruments and deferred liabilities (i.e. finance leases) the authority deems 
the carrying amount to be a reasonable approximation of the fair value.   

Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying 

AmountAmountAmountAmount Fair ValueFair ValueFair ValueFair Value

Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying 

AmountAmountAmountAmount Fair ValueFair ValueFair ValueFair Value

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Fund Manager - Tradition UK 749 749 0 0

Fund Manager - Investec Asset Management 22,593 22,593 22,733 22,733

In - House Investment 3,815 3,815 3,725 3,725

Iceland Deposit 2,554 2,554 2,787 2,787

29,711 29,711 29,245 29,245

31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011

 

 
Financial AssetsFinancial AssetsFinancial AssetsFinancial Assets    
 

The fair value for long term investments at the Balance Sheet date is higher than the carrying amount 
because the interest rate on similar investments is now lower than that obtained when the 
investment was originally made. 
 
17.17.17.17. IIIInventoriesnventoriesnventoriesnventories    
 

The Authority holds a small balance of inventories.  These are primarily internal consumables and 
small items for resale.  The value of these is as follows:   
 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Balance at 1st April 52 47

Movement in inventories (5)                 7

Closing balance at 31st MarchClosing balance at 31st MarchClosing balance at 31st MarchClosing balance at 31st March 47474747 54545454  
 
18.18.18.18. Construction Construction Construction Construction CCCContractsontractsontractsontracts    
 

At 31st March 2012 the Authority had no major construction contracts in progress. 
 
19.19.19.19. DebtorsDebtorsDebtorsDebtors    
    
The Authority’s debtors (net of the provision for bad and doubtful debts) are as follows: 
    
    

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Central government bodies 1,335             859                

Other local authorities -                    291                

Public corporations and trading funds - -

Other entities and individuals 3,520             3,249             

Net Debtors TotalNet Debtors TotalNet Debtors TotalNet Debtors Total 4,8554,8554,8554,855                                                    4,3994,3994,3994,399                                                     
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20.20.20.20. Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and Cash EquivalentsCash and Cash EquivalentsCash and Cash Equivalents    
 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash will also include bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and that are integral to the authority’s cash management.  

Balances classified as ‘Cash Equivalents’ fit the definition of being short-term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

The net balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements at the Balance 
Sheet date: 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

5 Cash held by the Authority 5                 

(307)            Bank current accounts 213             

1,580 Money Market Fund / Call Account 1,446           

-                 Short-term deposits with building societies -                 

1,2781,2781,2781,278 1,6641,6641,6641,664                                         
 
21.21.21.21. Assets held for saleAssets held for saleAssets held for saleAssets held for sale    
 

At 31st March 2012 the Authority had no assets held for sale. 
 
22.22.22.22. CreditorsCreditorsCreditorsCreditors    
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Central government bodies (2,173)           (4,022)           

Other local authorities (1,780)           (1,556)           

Public corporations and trading funds

Other entities and individuals (5,295)           (5,213)           

TotalTotalTotalTotal (9,248)(9,248)(9,248)(9,248)                                            (10,792)(10,792)(10,792)(10,792)                                     
 
23.23.23.23. ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions    
 

At 31st March 2012 the Authority had no provisions other than provisions for bad debts which have 
been disclosed under the Debtors note to the accounts.   
 
24.24.24.24. Usable Usable Usable Usable RRRReserveseserveseserveseserves    
 

Movement in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

2,373 Earmarked reserves 1,968

8,896 General fund 10,699

1,125 Capital Grants Unapplied 1,607

11,524 Capital Receipts 10,061

23,91623,91623,91623,916 Total Usable ReservesTotal Usable ReservesTotal Usable ReservesTotal Usable Reserves 24,33524,33524,33524,335  
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25.25.25.25. Unusable Unusable Unusable Unusable RRRReserveseserveseserveseserves    
    

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

9,404            Revaluation Reserve 9,499            

60,977           Capital Adjustment Account 66,119           

148               Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 387               

(14,588)          Pension Reserve (24,486)          

109               Collection Fund Adjustment Account 79                 

(103)              Accumulated Absences Account (97)               

10                 Unequal Pay Back Pay Account 10                 

55,95655,95655,95655,956                                        Total Unusable ReservesTotal Unusable ReservesTotal Unusable ReservesTotal Unusable Reserves 51,51151,51151,51151,511                                            
 
22225555a.a.a.a.    Revaluation ReserveRevaluation ReserveRevaluation ReserveRevaluation Reserve    

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority from increases in the value of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 

≠ revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

≠ used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

≠ disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance 
on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Revaluation ReserveRevaluation ReserveRevaluation ReserveRevaluation Reserve 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

6,249 Balance at 1 April Balance at 1 April Balance at 1 April Balance at 1 April 9,404

4,729 Upward revaluation of assets 95

(1,574)

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

3,155

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 

posted to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 95

0

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 

depreciation

0 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped

0 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 0

9,404 Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March 9,499

 
22225555b.b.b.b.    Capital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment Account 
 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is 
debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses 
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with 
reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost 
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basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the authority as finance for the costs 
of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 

 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties. The Account also 
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the 
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
 

Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those 
involving the Revaluation Reserve. 

 

 
31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Capital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment AccountCapital Adjustment Account 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

62,81662,81662,81662,816 Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April 60,97760,97760,97760,977

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(1,195)            > Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (1,736)         

(2,572)           > Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment -                 

(19)               > Amortisation of intangible assets (16)             

(6,587)           > Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,429)         

(85)               

 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (43)             

(10,458)         (3,224)            

 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 

(10,458)         

 Net Written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the 

year (3,224)            

 Capital financing applied in the year: 

6,827             > Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 5,846          

 > Capital grants and contribution credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 

1,818            

 > Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Account 707             

130              

 > Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 

the General Fund  283             

 > Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 

8,775            6,836             

(156)             

 Movement in the market value of Investment properties debited or credited 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 1,530             

 Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

60,97760,97760,97760,977                                        Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March 66,11966,11966,11966,119                                            

 
 

22225555c.c.c.c.    Financial Instruments Adjustment AccoFinancial Instruments Adjustment AccoFinancial Instruments Adjustment AccoFinancial Instruments Adjustment Accountuntuntunt    
    

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial 
instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions.  
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31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Financial Instruments Adjustment AccountFinancial Instruments Adjustment AccountFinancial Instruments Adjustment AccountFinancial Instruments Adjustment Account 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(5,919)(5,919)(5,919)(5,919)                                        Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April ----                                                                        

 Transfer impairment charge to FIAA 

 Transfer interest receivable 

5,919             Transfer impairment loss to CI&E 

----                                                                        Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March ----                                                                         
    
22225555d. d. d. d.     Pensions ReservePensions ReservePensions ReservePensions Reserve    
 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating 
the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any 
resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to 
be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any 
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore 
shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources 
the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will 
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Pensions ReservePensions ReservePensions ReservePensions Reserve 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(32,375)(32,375)(32,375)(32,375)                                Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April (14,588)(14,588)(14,588)(14,588)                                

13,939          Actuarial gains or (losses) on pensions assets and liabilities (9,702)           

2,460            

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of services in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,579)           

1,388            

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year 1,383            

(14,588)(14,588)(14,588)(14,588)                                Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March (24,486)(24,486)(24,486)(24,486)                                 
 

22225555eeee....  Deferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts Reserve  
 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the 
Authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 
backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Deferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts ReserveDeferred Capital Receipts Reserve 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

18181818                                                            Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April 148148148148                                                        

144              

 Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss 

on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 242              

(14)                Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (3)                 

148148148148                                                        Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March 387387387387                                                         
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22225555f.f.f.f.        Collection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment Account    
    

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition 
of council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due 
from council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to 
the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Collection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment AccountCollection Fund Adjustment Account 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(2)(2)(2)(2)                                                                    Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April 109109109109                                                            

111               

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income calculated for 

the year in accordance with statutory requirements (30)                

109109109109                                                        Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March 79797979                                                                    

 
 
22225555h.h.h.h.    Accumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences Account    
 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the 
General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the 
year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require 
that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 Accumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences AccountAccumulated Absences Account 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(134)(134)(134)(134)                                                Balance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 AprilBalance at 1 April (103)(103)(103)(103)                                                

134134134134                                                        Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 103103103103                                                        

(103)(103)(103)(103)                                                Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (97)(97)(97)(97)                                                        

31313131                                                            

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements 6666                                                                    

(103)(103)(103)(103)                                                Balance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 MarchBalance at 31 March (97)(97)(97)(97)                                                        

 
 
26.26.26.26. Cash Cash Cash Cash FFFFlow low low low SSSStatement tatement tatement tatement ––––    OOOOperating activitiesperating activitiesperating activitiesperating activities    

    

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:- 
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(911) Interest received (112)

3 Interest paid 2

(908) (110)  
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27.27.27.27. Cash Cash Cash Cash FFFFlow low low low SSSStatement tatement tatement tatement ––––    IIIInvesting activitiesnvesting activitiesnvesting activitiesnvesting activities    
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

4,293              

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 5,105              

63,872            Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 22,900            

Other payments for investing activites

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets

(68,246) Other receipts from investing activities (26,401)

(783)               Capital Grants Received (Gov't) (274)

(711)               Capital Grants Received (Non Gov't) (1,160)

(1,575)(1,575)(1,575)(1,575) Net cash flows from investing activitiesNet cash flows from investing activitiesNet cash flows from investing activitiesNet cash flows from investing activities 170170170170                                                             
 
 
28.28.28.28. Cash Cash Cash Cash FFFFlow low low low SSSStatement tatement tatement tatement ––––    FFFFinancing activitiesinancing activitiesinancing activitiesinancing activities    
 

31/03/201131/03/201131/03/201131/03/2011 31/03/201231/03/201231/03/201231/03/2012

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

(243)               Cash receipts of short-and long-term borrowing -                    

(1,136)             Other receipts from financing activities

2,084              Payment of short and long term borrowing 

Other payments for financing activities 926                

705705705705                                                            Net cash flows from financing activitiesNet cash flows from financing activitiesNet cash flows from financing activitiesNet cash flows from financing activities 926926926926                                                             
 
 
29.29.29.29. Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions (Segmental ReportingAmounts reported for resource allocation decisions (Segmental ReportingAmounts reported for resource allocation decisions (Segmental ReportingAmounts reported for resource allocation decisions (Segmental Reporting))))    
    

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. 
However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Authority’s Cabinet on the 
basis of budget reports analysed across service areas. These reports are prepared on a 
different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular: 
 

≠ no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and 
amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement) 

 

≠ the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pension 
contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year 

 

≠ expenditure on some support service is budgeted for centrally and not charged to services 
 
The income and expenditure of the Authority’s principal service areas recorded in the budget 
reports for the year is as follows: 
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Planning, 

Environmental Leisure & Resources Chief Total

2011/12 Services Housing Executives

£ £ £ £ £

Fees, charges & other 
service income (3,489,901) (2,829,498) (5,534,791) (2,373,473) (14,227,663)

Government Grants (34,567) (51,278) (26,671,174) (167,198) (26,924,216)

Total income (3,524,468) (2,880,776) (32,205,965) (2,540,671) (41,151,880)

Employee Expenses 2,527,813 2,174,785 3,582,354 1,064,053 9,349,005

Other service expenses 5,261,141 1,973,307 29,035,677 2,217,927 38,488,051

Support service recharges 799,193 946,422 1,368,325 1,018,190 4,132,130

Total expenditure 8,588,146 5,094,514 33,986,356 4,300,170 51,969,186

Net expenditureNet expenditureNet expenditureNet expenditure 5,063,6785,063,6785,063,6785,063,678 2,213,7382,213,7382,213,7382,213,738 1,780,3911,780,3911,780,3911,780,391 1,759,4991,759,4991,759,4991,759,499 10,817,30610,817,30610,817,30610,817,306  
 

Planning, 

Environmental Leisure & Resources Chief Total

2010/11 Services Housing Executives

£ £ £ £ £

Fees, charges & other 
service income (3,869,543)        (2,591,409)        (5,465,817)        (2,469,604)        (14,396,373)      

Government Grants (122,341)          (197,074)          (25,855,697)      -                      (26,175,112)      

Total income (3,991,884)        (2,788,484)        (31,321,513)      (2,469,604)        (40,571,486)      

Employee Expenses 2,812,783         2,280,486         3,462,109         1,345,712         9,901,091         

Other service expenses 5,172,927         2,037,550         28,729,300       2,063,748         38,003,525       

Support service recharges 910,496            1,034,583         1,529,980         1,106,788         4,581,848         

Total expenditure 8,896,206 5,352,619 33,721,390 4,516,249 52,486,463       

Net expenditureNet expenditureNet expenditureNet expenditure 4,904,3224,904,3224,904,3224,904,322 2,564,1352,564,1352,564,1352,564,135 2,399,8762,399,8762,399,8762,399,876 2,046,6442,046,6442,046,6442,046,644 11,914,97811,914,97811,914,97811,914,978                             
    
Reconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive IReconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive IReconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive IReconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income ncome ncome ncome 
and Expeand Expeand Expeand Expenditure Statemennditure Statemennditure Statemennditure Statementttt    
 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service income and expenditure relate to 
the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

2010/11 2011/12

£ £

Net expenditure in the Service Analysis [from above] 11,914,978      10,817,306      

Annual Leave adjustment not included in the analysis (30,805)           (5,853)            

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the analysis

Add / (Deduct): IAS 19 adjustments 194,712          (155,435)         

Decrease in non current assets valuation 2,096,027        

Removal of other trading activities & DSOs - not to be included in CI&E NCS (78,958)           38,592            
Removal of investment activities - not to be included in CI&E NCS 2,184,150        2,311,070       

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under state - expenditure 6,587,463        1,429,483       

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under state - funding (6,587,463)       

Rent in advance & Rental deposit (36,597)           14,731            

Waste Contract credit to Services (178,000)         (374,843)         

16,065,507      14,075,051      

Net Cost of Services in CI&E Statement Net Cost of Services in CI&E Statement Net Cost of Services in CI&E Statement Net Cost of Services in CI&E Statement 16,065,50716,065,50716,065,50716,065,507                    14,075,05114,075,05114,075,05114,075,051                    

    
    



West Oxfordshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2011/2012 

 
 

Page 50 

Reconciliation to subjective analysisReconciliation to subjective analysisReconciliation to subjective analysisReconciliation to subjective analysis    
    

This reconciliation aims to show how the figures presented in the analysis of service income and expenditure relates to a subjective analysis of the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. 
 

2011/12 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2011/12 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2011/12 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2011/12 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 

total income & expendituretotal income & expendituretotal income & expendituretotal income & expenditure

Service 

Analysis

Services not 

in Analysis

Not reported 

to mgt

Not to be in 

NCS

Net Cost of 

Services

Corporate 

Amounts Total

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Fees, charges & other service income      (11,592,965)            79,034         (11,513,931)             (560,516) (12,074,447)        

Interest and investment income        (2,634,698)        2,634,698                         -          (3,054,844) (3,054,844)          

Income from council tax                         -          (5,957,809) (5,957,809)          

Government grants and contributions      (26,924,216)         (26,924,216)          (6,531,777) (33,455,993)        

Total IncomeTotal IncomeTotal IncomeTotal Income      (41,151,880)     (41,151,880)     (41,151,880)     (41,151,880)                 -                 -                 -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -       2,713,732       2,713,732       2,713,732       2,713,732        (38,438,148)       (38,438,148)       (38,438,148)       (38,438,148)        (16,104,946)       (16,104,946)       (16,104,946)       (16,104,946) (54,543,093)(54,543,093)(54,543,093)(54,543,093)                            

Employee expenses         9,349,005         (161,288)            9,187,717              355,000 9,542,717           

Other service expenses        36,736,227        1,069,371         (331,241)          37,474,358              331,241 37,805,598         

Support Service recharges         4,132,130          (30,431)            4,101,699                30,431 4,132,130           

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment         1,751,824            (2,400)            1,749,424          (6,769,198) (5,019,774)          

Interest Payments                      -                         -                94,342 94,342               

Precepts & Levies                         -            2,406,552 2,406,552           

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool                      -                         -                  2,010 2,010                 

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of Non-Current Assets                      -                         - -                        

Total ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal Expenditure       51,969,186       51,969,186       51,969,186       51,969,186                 -                 -                 -                 -         908,083         908,083         908,083         908,083        (364,072)       (364,072)       (364,072)       (364,072)         52,513,197         52,513,197         52,513,197         52,513,197          (3,549,623)         (3,549,623)         (3,549,623)         (3,549,623) 48,963,57548,963,57548,963,57548,963,575                                

(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services       10,817,306       10,817,306       10,817,306       10,817,306                 -                 -                 -                 -         908,083         908,083         908,083         908,083       2,349,661       2,349,661       2,349,661       2,349,661         14,075,050         14,075,050         14,075,050         14,075,050        (19,654,569)       (19,654,569)       (19,654,569)       (19,654,569) (5,579,519)(5,579,519)(5,579,519)(5,579,519)                                     
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2010/11 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2010/11 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2010/11 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 2010/11 Reconciliation to subjective analysis of 
total income & expendituretotal income & expendituretotal income & expendituretotal income & expenditure

Service 
Analysis

Services not 
in Analysis

Not reported 
to mgt

Not to be in 
NCS

Net Cost of 
Services

Corporate 
Amounts Total

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Fees, charges & other service income      (11,943,468)         (11,943,468) (11,943,468)        

Interest and investment income        (2,452,905)        2,452,905                       -            (2,761,685) (2,761,685)          

Income from council tax                       -   (5,894,840)         (5,894,840)          

Government grants and contributions      (26,175,112)         (26,175,112) (7,401,271)         (33,576,383)        

Total IncomeTotal IncomeTotal IncomeTotal Income      (40,571,486)     (40,571,486)     (40,571,486)     (40,571,486)               -                 -                 -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -         2,452,905       2,452,905       2,452,905       2,452,905        (38,118,580)       (38,118,580)       (38,118,580)       (38,118,580)        (16,057,796)       (16,057,796)       (16,057,796)       (16,057,796) (54,176,376)(54,176,376)(54,176,376)(54,176,376)                            

Employee expenses         9,901,091          163,150          10,064,241          (4,006,000) 6,058,241           

Other service expenses        36,791,917         (215,935)         (347,714)          36,228,268             (294,454) 35,933,814         

Support Service recharges         4,581,848            4,581,848 4,581,848           

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment         1,211,608 2,096,027            3,307,635            2,231,525 5,539,160           

Interest Payments                       -                  51,582 51,582               

Precepts & Levies                       -              2,363,498 2,363,498           

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool                       -                  10,586 10,586               

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of Non-Current Assets                       -                  85,047 85,047               

Total ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal Expenditure       52,486,463       52,486,463       52,486,463       52,486,463               -                 -                 -                 -         2,043,242       2,043,242       2,043,242       2,043,242        (347,714)       (347,714)       (347,714)       (347,714)         54,181,991         54,181,991         54,181,991         54,181,991             441,785             441,785             441,785             441,785 54,623,77754,623,77754,623,77754,623,777                                

(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services       11,914,977       11,914,977       11,914,977       11,914,977               -                 -                 -                 -         2,043,242       2,043,242       2,043,242       2,043,242       2,105,191       2,105,191       2,105,191       2,105,191         16,063,411         16,063,411         16,063,411         16,063,411        (15,616,011)       (15,616,011)       (15,616,011)       (15,616,011) 447,400447,400447,400447,400                                                     
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30.30.30.30. Acquired and Acquired and Acquired and Acquired and DDDDiscontinued iscontinued iscontinued iscontinued OOOOperationsperationsperationsperations    
 
The Authority has no acquired operations in 2011/12. Operations that discontinued in 2011/12 
related to Concessionary Fares and S38 which both transferred to Oxfordshire County Council. 
 
31.31.31.31. Trading Trading Trading Trading OOOOperationsperationsperationsperations    
 
The Authority lets 18 units in industrial estates located in Witney. As part of the Council’s economic 
development strategy, rents can be set at less than the market rate to support small businesses.  
 

Trading operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
The net surplus on trading operations is charged as Financing and Investment Income. 
  
32.32.32.32. Agency ServicesAgency ServicesAgency ServicesAgency Services    
 
The collection of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) is administered under an agency 
agreement.  Cash collected by the Council [as billing authority] is collected on behalf of the 
Government and does not belong to the Council.  At 31st March 2012 any amount collected, but 
not yet paid to the Government is included on the Balance Sheet as a creditor balance, with any 
amounts owed to the Council as a debtor balance.  At 31st March 2012 the Council owed the 
Government £938,925 in relation to NNDR collection (In 2011/10 the Government owed the 
Council £992,282).      
     
33.33.33.33. Woodstock & District Swimming Pool (Registered Charity No. 304394)Woodstock & District Swimming Pool (Registered Charity No. 304394)Woodstock & District Swimming Pool (Registered Charity No. 304394)Woodstock & District Swimming Pool (Registered Charity No. 304394)    
 
The leasehold title for the Woodstock & District Swimming Pool is vested in the Official Custodian 
for Charities. Under the terms of a scheme dated November 1977, the District Council has acted as 
Trustee of the Charity and accordingly is required to account separately for income and expenditure 
relating to the Woodstock & District Swimming Pool. 
 

The management of Woodstock & District Swimming Pool transferred to Wycombe Leisure Ltd on 
5 April, 2002.  Wycombe Leisure Ltd changed their name on 25th March 2008 to Nexus 
Community. A merger with Greenwich Leisure Ltd took place on 1 January 2011 and the company 
was renamed GLL Nexus. GLL Nexus is a non-profit distributing organisation, which is contracted to 
manage the Council’s leisure facilities until 2016. 
 

Under the terms of the contract the Council paid Nexus Community £45,862 to manage 
Woodstock & District Swimming Pool.  Additionally, the Council incurred £15,179 of expenditure, 
including depreciation charges, in respect of the Swimming Pool.   
 

The direct income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2012 incurred by GLL Nexus in 
managing Woodstock & District Swimming Pool, excluding the management fee paid by the Council, 
is as follows: 
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2010/20112010/20112010/20112010/2011 Woodstock & District Swimming PoolWoodstock & District Swimming PoolWoodstock & District Swimming PoolWoodstock & District Swimming Pool 2011/20122011/20122011/20122011/2012

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

36                Employees 42                             

32                Premises Related Expenditure 27                             

10                Supplies & Services 7                              

(1)                 Capital Charges -                               

76767676                                                            75757575                                                                                                            

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome

(53)               Fees and charges for services (53)                           

(53)               (53)                           

23232323                                                            Net (surplus)/deficitNet (surplus)/deficitNet (surplus)/deficitNet (surplus)/deficit 22222222                                                                                                             
 
34.34.34.34. Pooled BudgetsPooled BudgetsPooled BudgetsPooled Budgets    
  
The Authority has no pooled budgets arrangement with third parties. 
 
35.35.35.35. Members AllowancesMembers AllowancesMembers AllowancesMembers Allowances    
 

The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year. 
 

2010/11
£

2011/12 
£

Basic Allowances 208,416 208,983

Responsibility Allowances 125,869 116,833

Expenses 25,031 7,860

Total 359,316 333,676  
 
36.36.36.36. OfficeOfficeOfficeOfficer Remunerationr Remunerationr Remunerationr Remuneration    
    

2011/122011/122011/122011/12    
    

PositionPositionPositionPosition
Salary, Fee and Salary, Fee and Salary, Fee and Salary, Fee and 

AllowancesAllowancesAllowancesAllowances
SupplementsSupplementsSupplementsSupplements HonorariumHonorariumHonorariumHonorarium

Benefit in Benefit in Benefit in Benefit in 

KindKindKindKind

Compensation Compensation Compensation Compensation 

for lost officefor lost officefor lost officefor lost office

PensionPensionPensionPension

ContributionContributionContributionContribution

Total Remuneration Total Remuneration Total Remuneration Total Remuneration 

(£)(£)(£)(£)

Chief Executive and Clerk of 
the Council

101,691 15,000 5,348 16,859 138,898

Strategic Director 

(Development)
73,812 9,398 5,277 12,042 100,528

Strategic Director 

(Environment) - (Left)
18,953 1,260 2,870 23,084

Strategic Director 
(Environment) 

12,302 908 808 67 1,897 15,982

Strategic Director (Resources) 73,812 1,578 8,857 2,888 11,904 99,040

Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services

50,496 1,215 3,074 2,213 7,714 64,711
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2010/112010/112010/112010/11    
    

PositionPositionPositionPosition Basic SalaryBasic SalaryBasic SalaryBasic Salary SupplementsSupplementsSupplementsSupplements HonorariumHonorariumHonorariumHonorarium

Benefit in Benefit in Benefit in Benefit in 

KindKindKindKind

Compensation Compensation Compensation Compensation 

for loss of Officefor loss of Officefor loss of Officefor loss of Office

Pension Pension Pension Pension 

ContributionContributionContributionContribution

Total Total Total Total 

RemunerationRemunerationRemunerationRemuneration

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

Chief Executive 101,691 15,000 4,220 24,833 145,744

Strategic Director 

(Development) 73,812 4,843 4,279 17,526 100,460

Strategic Director 
(Environment) 73,812 5,447 4,843 326 110,000 16,817 211,245

Strategic Director 
(Resources) 73,812 6,083 8,857 16,744 105,496

Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services 50,496 1,215 3,073 2,554 11,357 68,695     
    
The Chief Executive and Strategic Director (Resources) provide services for both the West 
Oxfordshire and Cotswold District Council. They are formally employed by West Oxfordshire and 
50% of their salaries and other remunerations are recharged to Cotswold District Council. The 
Strategic Director (Environment) is an employee of Cotswold District Council. He is seconded for 
50% of his time to West Oxfordshire District Council. The figure included in above table have been 
obtained from Cotswold District Council and represent the full salary, allowances and Pension Cost 
incurred by Cotswold District Council (as the employer). 
 
The Authority’s total employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year, excluding 
those in note 36 above) were as follows: 
 

Remuneration bandRemuneration bandRemuneration bandRemuneration band 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 
Number of Number of Number of Number of 
employeesemployeesemployeesemployees

2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 
Number of Number of Number of Number of 
employeesemployeesemployeesemployees

£50,000 - £54,999 1 3

£55,000 - £59,999 3 4

£60,000 - £64,999 3 2

£65,000 - £69,999

£70,000 - £74,999

£75,000 - £79,999

£80,000 - £84,999

£85,000 - £89,999

£90,000 - £94,999

£95,000 - £99,999

£100,000 - £104,999

£105,000 - £109,999

£110,000 - £114,999

£115,000 - £119,999  
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The numbers of exit package with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 
 

Exit package cost Exit package cost Exit package cost Exit package cost 
bank (including bank (including bank (including bank (including 

special payments)special payments)special payments)special payments)

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

0-20,000 1 1 2 7,284 28,440

20,001-40,000 2 3 2 1 60,281 23,458

40,001-60,000

60,001-80,000

80,001-100,000

100,001-150,000 1 1 110,000

Total 4 3 0 0 4 3 177,565 51,898

Total cost of exit Total cost of exit Total cost of exit Total cost of exit 

packages in each packages in each packages in each packages in each 
band (£)band (£)band (£)band (£)

Total No of exit Total No of exit Total No of exit Total No of exit 
package by cost bandpackage by cost bandpackage by cost bandpackage by cost band

No of compulsory No of compulsory No of compulsory No of compulsory 
redundanciesredundanciesredundanciesredundancies

No of other No of other No of other No of other 
departures agreeddepartures agreeddepartures agreeddepartures agreed

 
37.37.37.37. External Audit CostsExternal Audit CostsExternal Audit CostsExternal Audit Costs    

 

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections, and to non-audit services provided by the 
Authority’s external auditors (the Audit Commission):- 

 

External audit costsExternal audit costsExternal audit costsExternal audit costs 2010/11 2011/12

£000 £000
Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor for the year 100 93

Fees payable in respect of statutory inspections 0 0

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year 27 29

Fees payable in respect of other service provided during the year 9 0

TotalTotalTotalTotal 136136136136 122122122122  
 
38.38.38.38. Grant IncomeGrant IncomeGrant IncomeGrant Income    
 

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2011/12: 
 

Miscellaneous government grantsMiscellaneous government grantsMiscellaneous government grantsMiscellaneous government grants 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income

Demand on the Collection Fund (5,895) (5,959)

Capital Grants received (1,206) (1,156)

General Government Grants (860)        (1,805)

Non Domestic Rates Redistribution (5,335) (3,570)

Total (13,296) (12,490)

Credited to services (28,314) (27,274)

Total (28,314) (27,274)
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The Authority has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to 
be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies 
or property to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 
 

Capital grants receipts in advanceCapital grants receipts in advanceCapital grants receipts in advanceCapital grants receipts in advance 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Environment Agency - land drainage grant (199) (274)

Total (199) (274)  
 
39.39.39.39. Related PartiesRelated PartiesRelated PartiesRelated Parties    
 

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – i.e. bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or 
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent 
to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or 
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Authority. 
    

Central GovernmentCentral GovernmentCentral GovernmentCentral Government    
    

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Authority – it is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, 
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many 
transactions that the Authority has with other parties (eg Council Tax bills, Housing Benefits). 
Grants received from government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 
28 on reporting for resource allocation decisions. Grant receipts outstanding at 31 March 
2012, are shown in Note 38. 
    
MembersMembersMembersMembers    
    

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. 
The total of members’ allowances paid in 2011/12 is shown in Note 35. All elected Members 
are required to complete a questionnaire detailing any areas where potential conflicts of 
interest may occur between their private interests and their position as the elected 
representatives of the Council.  Details are recorded in the register of members’ interest, open 
to public inspection at the Council Offices during office hours. There are no significant related 
party transactions to report.  
 
OfficersOfficersOfficersOfficers    
    

West Oxfordshire District Council is sharing its Chief Executive and a Strategic Director with 
Cotswold District Council. Both officers are employed by this Council with an agreement that 
Cotswold District Council contribute 50% of the officers’ costs.  Although both officers are in 
positions of influence, decisions on overall policy and the strategic direction are still set by 
Cabinet and Council.  
 

There are also some other management posts which this Council shares with Cotswold 
District Council in a bid to boost efficiency and reduce costs. 
    
Other Public BodiesOther Public BodiesOther Public BodiesOther Public Bodies    
The Council collects precepts on behalf of Oxfordshire County Council, Thames Valley Police 
Authority and the Town and Parish Councils within the Council area.  Precepts for the County 
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Council and Police Authority are shown in the Collection Fund. Town and Parish precepts are 
shown in the Income and Expenditure Account. 
    

The Council provides retirement benefit to its employees. The Local Government Pension 
Scheme is administered by Oxfordshire County Council.  
 
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the AuthorityEntities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the AuthorityEntities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the AuthorityEntities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority    
 

There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Authority. 
 
40.40.40.40. Capital Expenditure and Capital FinancingCapital Expenditure and Capital FinancingCapital Expenditure and Capital FinancingCapital Expenditure and Capital Financing    
 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below 
(including the value of assets acquired under finance lease), together with the resources that 
have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by 
charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase 
in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred 
historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part 
of this note. 

 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement (48)           1,951        
Capital investment:
Property, Plant and Equipment 4,036        1,203        
Heritage Assets 55            33            
Investment Properties 95            4,044        
Intangible Assets 1              61            
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 6,587        1,429        
Total Capital Expenditure 10,774      6,770        
Sources of finance
Capital receipts (6,827)       (5,855)       
Government grants and other contributions (1,818)       (707)         
Sums set aside from revenue:
Direct revenue contributions
MRP/Loans fund principal (130)         (283)         
Total Capital Fund (8,775)       (6,845)       

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 1,951        1,876        

Explanation of movements in year
Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported by 

government financial assistance)
Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by 

government financial assistance) (130)         (283)         
Assets acquired under finance leases (Waste Contract) 2,129        213          

Increase/(decrease) in Capital financing requirement 1,999        (70)           
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41.41.41.41. LeasesLeasesLeasesLeases    
 
Authority Authority Authority Authority as Lesseeas Lesseeas Lesseeas Lessee        

    
Finance LeasesFinance LeasesFinance LeasesFinance Leases    
    

The Authority entered into a 7 year contract for waste collection and recycling with effect from 1st 
October 2010. This arrangement has been determined to be an embedded finance lease for the 
vehicles utilised in performing the service, and the payment due under the contract includes vehicles 
utilised in performing the service. The assets acquired under this lease are carried as Property, Plant 
and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000

Other Land and Buildings

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 2,129 2,042

2,129 2,042  
 

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under this lease comprising settlement of 
the long-term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority and finance costs 
that will be payable by the Authority in future years, while the liability remains outstanding. The 
minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000

Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease 

payments) on non-current assets 1,998 1,896

plus

Finance Costs payable in future years 320 265

Minimum lease payments 2,318 2,161

 
 
The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Not later than one year 356 392 270 309

Later than one year and not later than five years 1,427 1,572 1,213 1,394

Later that five years 535 197 515 193

2,318 2,161 1,998 1,896

Minimum Lease Payments Finance Lease Liabilities

    
Operating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating Leases    
 

The Authority leases several vehicles, printer/copiers and a number of premises in the local area. 
Minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are as below, 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000

Not later than one year 158                159                

Later than one year and not later than five years 656                482                

Later than five years 1,400              1,266               
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The expenditure charged to the cost of services is as follows, 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 158 159

Sublease payment receivable (105)               (127)                
    
Authority Authority Authority Authority as Lessoras Lessoras Lessoras Lessor    
 
Finance LeasesFinance LeasesFinance LeasesFinance Leases    

    

The Authority has no finance lease arrangements within its property portfolio.     
    

OOOOperating Leasesperating Leasesperating Leasesperating Leases    
    

The Authority leases out property under operating leases for several vehicles, printer/copiers and a 
number of premises within the local area. The future minimum lease payment receivable under non 
– cancellable leases in future years are:  
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

£000 £000

Not later than one year 2,258 2,514

Later than one year and not later than five years 10,615 8,912

Later than five years 40,211 39,641  
 

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking 
place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  
 
42.42.42.42. Private Finance Private Finance Private Finance Private Finance InitiativesInitiativesInitiativesInitiatives and Similar Contracts and Similar Contracts and Similar Contracts and Similar Contracts    
 

The Council has no Private Finance Initiatives or similar Contracts. 
 
43.43.43.43. Impairment Losses Impairment Losses Impairment Losses Impairment Losses     
 

On 28 October 2011 the Icelandic Supreme Court ruled that UK Local Authorises’ claims in the 
administration of Glitnir and Landsbanki qualified as priority claims under Icelandic bankruptcy 
legislation. This means that the value of local authorities’ claims in Icelandic administration qualifying 
for priority settlement are now final and will, at the very least, be equal to the value of the original 
deposit plus interest accrued to 22 April 2009.  At the 31 March 2012 the Council had received 
£6.2m from Icelandic Banks.  The Council has adopted latest (May 2012) CIPFA LAAP bulletin 82 
guidance and reduced its estimated impairment loss by £5.8m, reversed out last year’s capitalisation 
expenditure and replenished Capital Receipt Reserves by £4.1m. The changes in the June 2012 
CIPFA LAAP bulletin 82 were not material and are not reflected in the accounts. The Council also 
set up a new escrow deposit account to record outstanding payments held in Icelandic Krona, as this 
cannot currently be converted into GBP due to currency controls in Iceland. The value of the escrow 
deposit is recorded on the balance sheet at fair value at 31 March 2012.  
 
44.44.44.44. Capitalisation oCapitalisation oCapitalisation oCapitalisation of f f f BBBBorrowing orrowing orrowing orrowing CCCCostsostsostsosts    
 

The Council retains debt free status and there is no capitalisation of borrowing costs. 
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45.45.45.45. Termination BenefitsTermination BenefitsTermination BenefitsTermination Benefits    
 

The Authority terminated three employees’ contracts in 2011/12, incurring liabilities of £45k. See 
Note 36 for the number of exit packages and total cost per band. 
46.46.46.46. Pension Schemes accounted for as defined contributionPension Schemes accounted for as defined contributionPension Schemes accounted for as defined contributionPension Schemes accounted for as defined contribution schemes schemes schemes schemes    
 

The defined contribution scheme is not applicable to the Authority. 
 
47.47.47.47. Defined Defined Defined Defined BBBBenefit enefit enefit enefit PPPPension ension ension ension SSSSchemeschemeschemeschemes    
 
Participation in Pension SchemesParticipation in Pension SchemesParticipation in Pension SchemesParticipation in Pension Schemes    
    

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 
disclosed at the time the employees earn their future entitlement.    
 

The Authority participates in two post employment schemes: 
 

≠ The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Oxfordshire County 
Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority 
and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the 
pensions liabilities with investment assets. 

 

≠ Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early 
retirement – this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are 
recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to 
meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension 
payments as they eventually fall due.    

    

Transactions Relating to PostTransactions Relating to PostTransactions Relating to PostTransactions Relating to Post----employment Benefitsemployment Benefitsemployment Benefitsemployment Benefits    
    

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by the employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the 
charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the 
real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
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Defined Benefit Pension SchemesDefined Benefit Pension SchemesDefined Benefit Pension SchemesDefined Benefit Pension Schemes

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure StatementComprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

>current service cost 1,583           1,224           -                  -                  

>past service costs (4,804)          -                  (134)            

>settlements and curtailments

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

>interest cost 2,957           2,576           39               34               

>expected return on scheme assets (2,064)          (2,255)          -                  -                  

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Serviceson the Provision of Serviceson the Provision of Serviceson the Provision of Services (2,328)          1,545           (95)              34               

Other PostEmployment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Other PostEmployment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Other PostEmployment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Other PostEmployment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure StatementIncome and Expenditure StatementIncome and Expenditure StatementIncome and Expenditure Statement

>actuarial (gains) and losses (13,992)        9,654           53               48               

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement (16,320)        11,199         (42)              82               

Movement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves StatementMovement in Reserves Statement

>reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the 

Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance 

with the Code 2,328           (1,545)          95               (34)              

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for 

pensions in the year:pensions in the year:pensions in the year:pensions in the year:

>employers' contributions payable to scheme 1,350           1,345           

>retirement benefits payable to pensioners 38 38

Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension 

SchemeSchemeSchemeScheme

Discretionary Benefits Discretionary Benefits Discretionary Benefits Discretionary Benefits 

ArrangementsArrangementsArrangementsArrangements

 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure in the actuarial gains or losses on pension assets and liabilities line was at 31 March 
2012 a loss of £9.702m and at 31 March 2011 was a gain of £13.939m.  
    

Assets and Liabilities Assets and Liabilities Assets and Liabilities Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post Employment Benefitsin Relation to Post Employment Benefitsin Relation to Post Employment Benefitsin Relation to Post Employment Benefits    
 

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 
 

Reconciliation of PV of the scheme Reconciliation of PV of the scheme Reconciliation of PV of the scheme Reconciliation of PV of the scheme 

liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Opening balance at 1 April 61,814        46,850        725             645             

Current service cost 1,583          1,224          

Interest cost 2,957          2,576          39              34              

Contrubutions by scheme participants 425             407             

Acturarial gains and losses (13,237)       7,793          53              48              

Benefits paid (1,888)         (1,663)         (38)             (38)             

Past service costs (4,804)         -                 

Curtailments 10              

Settlements (134)           

Closing balance at 31 March 46,85046,85046,85046,850                                57,19757,19757,19757,197                                645645645645                                                689689689689                                                

Funded liabil ities: Local Government Funded liabil ities: Local Government Funded liabil ities: Local Government Funded liabil ities: Local Government 

Pension SchemePension SchemePension SchemePension Scheme

Unfunded liabilities: Discretionary Unfunded liabilities: Discretionary Unfunded liabilities: Discretionary Unfunded liabilities: Discretionary 

BenefitsBenefitsBenefitsBenefits
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Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets: 
 

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme 

assets:assets:assets:assets:

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Opening balance at 1 April 30,164        32,907        

Expected rate of return 2,064          2,255          

Actuarial gains and losses 755             (1,861)         

Employer contributions 1,387          1,355          

Contributions by scheme participants 425             407             

Benefits paid (1,888)         (1,663)         

Entity combinations 

Settlements

Closing balance at 31 March 32,90732,90732,90732,907                                33,40033,40033,40033,400                                

Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension 

SchemeSchemeSchemeScheme

 
 

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available 
on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments 
are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 

 

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the 
respective markets. 

 

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £394k (In 2010/11: £2.548 m). 
    

Scheme HistoryScheme HistoryScheme HistoryScheme History    
    

Scheme HistoryScheme HistoryScheme HistoryScheme History 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of liabilities:

Local Government Pension Scheme (41,550)       (45,080)       (62,539)       (47,495)       (57,886)       

Discretionary Benefits

Fair value of assets in the Local 

Government Pension Scheme 28,970        22,180        30,164        32,907        33,400        

Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme:

Local Government Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefits

Total (12,580)       (22,900)       (32,375)       (14,588)       (24,486)           
    

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run to pay post 
employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £57.886m has a substantial impact on the net 
worth of the Authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance of 
£24.486m. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position 
of the Authority remains healthy: 

 

≠ the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions 
over the remaining working life of employees (ie before payments fall due), as assessed by 
the scheme actuary 

≠ finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are 
actually paid. 

 

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the 
Council in the year to 31st March 2013 is £1.327m. 
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Expected contributions for the Discretionary Benefits scheme in the year to 31 March 2013 are nil. 
    
Basis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities    
    

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary 
Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, 
estimates for the Council being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 
2010. 
 

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
Basis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and LiabilitiesBasis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12

Long-term expected rate of return on 

assets in the scheme:

Equity investments 7.4% 6.3%

Gilts 4.4% 3.3%

Other Bonds 5.5% 4.6%

Property 6.4% 5.3%

Cash 3.0% 3.0%

Alternative Assets 7.4% 6.3%

Total 6.8% 5.7%

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

>Men 21.5 19 21.5 19

>Women 24.1 23.1 24.1 23.1

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

>Men 23.4 21 23.4 21

>Women 25.9 25 25.9 25

Rate of inflation 2.7% 2.5% 2.7% 2.5%

Rate of increase in salaries 5.0% 4.7% 5.0% 4.7%

Rate of increase in pensions 2.7% 2.5% 2.7% 2.5%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.5% 4.6% 5.5% 4.6%

Take up of option to convert annual 
pension into retirement lump sum 50.0% 50.0%

Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension Local Government Pension 

SchemeSchemeSchemeScheme
Discretionary BenefitsDiscretionary BenefitsDiscretionary BenefitsDiscretionary Benefits

 

 
 
The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of 
the total assets held: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012

% %

Equity investments 72 70

Debt Instruments 14 16

Other assets 14 14

100 100  
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History of Experience Gains and LossesHistory of Experience Gains and LossesHistory of Experience Gains and LossesHistory of Experience Gains and Losses    
 

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2010/11 can be analysed into 
the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31st March 2011: 
 

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

% % % % %

Differences between the expected and 

actual return on assets (8.5) (40.0) 22.4 2.3 (5.6)

Experience gains and losses on liabilities (2.4) 0.4 0.0 10.5 0.0

 
 
48.48.48.48. Contingent Contingent Contingent Contingent LLLLiiiiabilitiesabilitiesabilitiesabilities    
 

The Authority has no contingent liabilities. 
 
49.49.49.49. Contingent Contingent Contingent Contingent AAAAssetsssetsssetsssets    
    
The Authority has no contingent assets. 
 
50.50.50.50. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instrumentsNature and extent of risks arising from financial instrumentsNature and extent of risks arising from financial instrumentsNature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments    
 

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Authority does not require debt 
financing and currently does not have any debt exposure.  As such the key risks are in relation to 
financial assets and are: 

♠ Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council; 

♠ Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments;  

♠ Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial 
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms. 

♠ Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes 
in such measures as interest rates movements. 

Overall Procedures for Managing RiskOverall Procedures for Managing RiskOverall Procedures for Managing RiskOverall Procedures for Managing Risk    

The Authority’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial 
markets, and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks.  The procedures for risk management 
are set out through a legal framework set out in the Local Government Act 2003 and the associated 
regulations.  These require the Authority to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA 
Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Investment Guidance issued 
through the Act.  Overall these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways: 

♠ by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice; 

♠ by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years limiting: 

≠ The Council’s overall borrowing; 

≠ Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates; 

≠ Its maximum and minimum exposures the maturity structure of its debt; 

≠ Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year. 
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♠ by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both 
investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government 
Guidance; 

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Authority’s annual Council Tax 
setting budget.  These items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which 
outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument 
exposure.  Actual performance is reported annually to Members. 

The Authority has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent 
amendments) and complies with The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (both 
revised in November 2011). 
 

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Authority approves a Treasury 
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the 
parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments. The Council also 
produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to 
manage these risks.  
 

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with the 
CLG’s Investment Guidance for local authorities.  This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be 
given to security and liquidity, rather than yield.  The Authority’s Treasury Strategy, together with its 
Treasury Management Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of return consistent with the 
proper levels of security and liquidity. 
 

These policies are implemented by a central treasury team.  The Authority maintains written 
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management 
Practices. 

 

CreditCreditCreditCredit Risk Risk Risk Risk    
    

Loans and ReceivablesLoans and ReceivablesLoans and ReceivablesLoans and Receivables    
The Authority manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed with the Debt 
Management Office, other local authorities, AAA-rated money market funds and Banks and Building 
Societies of sufficiently high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  A limit of 
£5m of the total portfolio is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single 
counterparty. The Authority also sets a total group investment limit for institutions that are part of 
the same banking group. No more than £7.5m in total can be invested for a period longer than one 
year. 
 

It must also be noted that although credit ratings remain a key source of information, the Authority 
recognises that they have limitations and investment decisions are based on a range of market 
intelligence. All investments have been made in line with the Authority’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement for 2011/12, approved by Full Council in February 2011. The 2011/12Treasury 
Strategy can be found via the following web link: www.westoxon.gov.uk 
 

As conditions in the financial sector had begun to show signs of improvement, albeit with substantial 
intervention by government authorities, the Authority decided it would be appropriate to diversify 
the counterparty list in 2011/12, through the inclusion of comparable non-UK Banks for investments. 
The sovereign states whose banks were included were Australia, Canada, Finland, France, Germany, 
Netherlands, Switzerland and the US.  These countries, and the Banks within them, were selected 
after analysis and careful monitoring of: 
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§ Credit Ratings (minimum long-term A+)  
§ Credit Default Swaps 
§ GDP;  Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP 
§ Sovereign Support Mechanisms / potential support from a well-resourced       
parent institution 

§ Share Price 
 

Throughout 2011/12 the minimumminimumminimumminimum criteria for new investments has been a long term rating of 
A+/A1/A+ (Fitch/Moody’s/S&P) and a short term rating of F1/P-1/A-1 (Fitch/Moody’s/S&P).  
 

The table below summarises the nominal value of the Authority’s investment portfolio at 31st March 
2012, and confirms that all investments were made in line with the Authority’s approved credit 
rating criteria at the time of placing the investment:   
 

CounterCounterCounterCounterpartypartypartyparty    

Credit Rating Credit Rating Credit Rating Credit Rating 
Criteria met Criteria met Criteria met Criteria met 
when investment when investment when investment when investment 
placed?placed?placed?placed?    

Credit Rating Credit Rating Credit Rating Credit Rating 
Criteria met Criteria met Criteria met Criteria met 

on on on on 
31.03.2012?31.03.2012?31.03.2012?31.03.2012?    

Up to Up to Up to Up to 
1 1 1 1 

monthmonthmonthmonth    

> 1 > 1 > 1 > 1 
month month month month 
and < 3 and < 3 and < 3 and < 3 
monthsmonthsmonthsmonths    

> 9 > 9 > 9 > 9 
months months months months 
and < 12 and < 12 and < 12 and < 12 
monthsmonthsmonthsmonths    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

  YES / NO YES / NO £000 £000 £000 £000 

Santander UK  YES YES 700    700 

Lloyds TSB YES YES   2,000 1,000 3,000 

TotalTotalTotalTotal                    700700700700    2,0002,0002,0002,000    1,0001,0001,0001,000    3,7003,7003,7003,700    
 
The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31st March 2012 met the Authority’s 
credit rating criteria on the 31st March 2012. 
 

The above analysis excludes the estimated carrying value after impairment of the Authority’s 
Icelandic Bank investment of £2.786m. 
 
The Authority does not generally allow extended credit for customers, but some of the current 
balance is pas its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by 
age as follows: 
 

31/03/2011 31/03/2012
£000 £000

Less than three months 518 574

Three to six months 52 24

Six months to one year 35 23

More than one year 134 109

739 730  
 
    
Liquidity Liquidity Liquidity Liquidity RiskRiskRiskRisk    
    

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is 
available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has access to borrowing 
facilities via the Public Works Loan Board, commercial banks, bond issues, medium term notes, tax 
increment financing, the European Investment Bank, and other local authorities. There is no 
perceived risk that the Authority will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  
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The Authority also has to manage the risk that it will not be exposed to replenishing a significant 
proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates.  The Authority would only 
borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business case for doing so and will only do so for 
the current capital programme or to finance future debt maturities. The Authority has no 
outstanding borrowing as at 31st March 2012. 
    
Market RiskMarket RiskMarket RiskMarket Risk    
 

§ Interest Rate Risk:  The Authority is exposed to risks arising from movements in interest 
rates.  The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting an upper 
limit of 100% on external debt that can be subject to variable interest rates.   
 

Investments are also subject to movements in interest rates.  As investments are made at 
fixed rates, but for shorter periods of time, there is greater exposure to interest rate 
movements.  This risk has to be balanced against actions taken to mitigate credit risk. 

 

If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial 
effect would be: 

 
Increase In Increase In Increase In Increase In 
Interest Interest Interest Interest 

1% Higher1% Higher1% Higher1% Higher

Increase in interest receivalbe on variable rate investments 227

Impact on Surpluse or deficit on the Provision of Services 227

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets (37)

Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (37)  
 

 

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the 
movements being reversed. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used 
in the ‘Fair Value’ disclosure note. 
  

§ Price Risk: The Authority does not invest in equity shares and therefore is not subject to any 
price risk (i.e. the risk that the Authority will suffer loss as a result of adverse movements in 
the price of financial instruments).  
 

§ Foreign Exchange Risk: The Authority holds some deposits in currencies other than sterling 
from Icelandic deposit repayment. The amounts of deposit outstanding are reconverted at 
the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains and losses are recognised in the 
Financing and Investment income and expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  
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51.51.51.51. Heritage Heritage Heritage Heritage AssetsAssetsAssetsAssets: Five: Five: Five: Five----Year Summary of TransactionsYear Summary of TransactionsYear Summary of TransactionsYear Summary of Transactions    
    

Heritage Assets: Five-YearHeritage Assets: Five-YearHeritage Assets: Five-YearHeritage Assets: Five-Year

 Summary of Transactions Summary of Transactions Summary of Transactions Summary of Transactions

2007/082007/082007/082007/08 2008/092008/092008/092008/09 2009/102009/102009/102009/10 2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Cost of Acquisitions of Heritage Assets

     Art Collection -                 15              39              55              33              

Total cost of PurchasesTotal cost of PurchasesTotal cost of PurchasesTotal cost of Purchases ----                                                                15151515                                                        39393939                                                        55555555                                                        33333333                                                        

Value of Heritage Assets Acquired by 
Donation

     Art Collection -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total DonationsTotal DonationsTotal DonationsTotal Donations ----                                                                ----                                                                ----                                                                ----                                                                ----                                                                

Disposals of Art Collection Assets

    Carrying Value -                 -                 -                 -                 43              

    Proceeds -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 43              

Impairment recognised in the period

     Art Collection -                 -                 -                 -                 (43)             

    
 
52.52.52.52. Heritage Assets: Change in Accounting Policy required by the Code of Heritage Assets: Change in Accounting Policy required by the Code of Heritage Assets: Change in Accounting Policy required by the Code of Heritage Assets: Change in Accounting Policy required by the Code of PPPPractice for ractice for ractice for ractice for LLLLocal ocal ocal ocal 

Authority Accounting in the United KingdomAuthority Accounting in the United KingdomAuthority Accounting in the United KingdomAuthority Accounting in the United Kingdom    
 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12 introduced a 
change to the treatment in accounting for heritage assets held by the Authority. As set out in our 
summary of significant accounting polices, the Authority now requires heritage assets to be carried in 
the Balance Sheet at valuation. 
 

Heritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage AssetsHeritage Assets    
 

For 2011/12 the Authority is required to change its accounting policy for heritage assets and 
recognise them at valuation. Previously, heritage assets were either recognised as community assets 
(at cost) in the property, plant and equipment classification in the Balance Sheet or were not 
recognised in the Balance Sheet as it was not possible to obtain cost information on the assets. 
Community Assets (that are now to be classified as heritage assets) that were donated to the 
Authority were held at valuation as a proxy for historical cost. The Authority’s accounting policies for 
recognition and measurement of heritage assets are set out in the summary of significant accounting 
policies (see item (n) under note 1). 
 

In applying the new accounting policy, the Authority has identified that the assets that were 
previously held as community assets within property, plant and equipment at £109k should now be 
recognised as heritage assets and measured at £109k, with no corresponding increase in the 
Revaluation Reserve. These assets relate to statues and sculptures in respect of public art, which was 
previously recognised in the community asset classification of property, plant and equipment. 
The 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 Balance Sheets and 2010/11 comparative figures have thus 
been restated in the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts to apply the new policy. 
 

The effects of the restatement are as follows: 
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≠ At 1 April 2010 the carrying amount of the Heritage Assets is presented at its valuation (using 
historic cost as a proxy) at £54k. The element that was previously recognised in property, plant 
and equipment has been reclassified and written down by £54k. There is no change in the 
revaluation reserve as a result of this. 

 

≠ The fully restated 1 April 2010 Balance Sheet is provided on page 12. The adjustments that have 
been made to that Balance Sheet over the version published in the 2010/11 Statement of 
Accounts are as follows: 

 
Effect on Opening Balance Sheet 1 April 2010Effect on Opening Balance Sheet 1 April 2010Effect on Opening Balance Sheet 1 April 2010Effect on Opening Balance Sheet 1 April 2010    
  

Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on 

Opening Balance Sheet Opening Balance Sheet Opening Balance Sheet Opening Balance Sheet 

1 April 20101 April 20101 April 20101 April 2010

Opening BalancesOpening BalancesOpening BalancesOpening Balances

as atas atas atas at

1 April 2010 1 April 2010 1 April 2010 1 April 2010 

RestatementRestatementRestatementRestatement Restatement required to Restatement required to Restatement required to Restatement required to 

opening balances as atopening balances as atopening balances as atopening balances as at

1 April 20101 April 20101 April 20101 April 2010

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Property, Plant & Equipment 38,731                          (54)                      38,677                                  

Heritage Assets -                                  54                       54                                        

Long-term AssetsLong-term AssetsLong-term AssetsLong-term Assets 38,73138,73138,73138,731                                                                                                ----                                                                                                38,73138,73138,73138,731                                                                                                                                

 
Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statementand Expenditure Statementand Expenditure Statementand Expenditure Statement    
 

There has been no restatement of any lines of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement Movement in Reserves Statement Movement in Reserves Statement Movement in Reserves Statement –––– Unusable Reserves 2010/11 Unusable Reserves 2010/11 Unusable Reserves 2010/11 Unusable Reserves 2010/11    
 

There has been no restatement of any lines of the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The resulting restated Balance Sheet for 31 March 2011 is provided on page 12. The adjustments 
that have been made to that Balance Sheet over the version published in the 2010/11 Statement of 
Accounts are as follows: 
    

Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on Balance Sheet 31 MarchBalance Sheet 31 MarchBalance Sheet 31 MarchBalance Sheet 31 March    2011201120112011    
 

Effect on Balance SheetEffect on Balance SheetEffect on Balance SheetEffect on Balance Sheet

 31 March 2011 31 March 2011 31 March 2011 31 March 2011

As Previously StatedAs Previously StatedAs Previously StatedAs Previously Stated

31 March 201131 March 201131 March 201131 March 2011

As RestatedAs RestatedAs RestatedAs Restated

31 March 201131 March 201131 March 201131 March 2011

RestatementRestatementRestatementRestatement

2011201120112011

£000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000 £000£000£000£000

Property, Plant & Equipment 42,126                          (109)                    42,017                                  

Heritage Assets -                                  109                     109                                      

Long-term AssetsLong-term AssetsLong-term AssetsLong-term Assets 42,12642,12642,12642,126                                                                                                ----                                                                                                42,12642,12642,12642,126                                                                                                                                

  
The effect of the change in accounting policy in 2010/11 has been that heritage assets are recognised 
at £109k on the Balance Sheet, with property, plant and equipment being restated by the amount of 
heritage assets previously recognised at cost in community assets (a sub-classification of property, 
plant and equipment) of £109k. There has been no change to the revaluation reserve.
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THE COLLECTION FUNDTHE COLLECTION FUNDTHE COLLECTION FUNDTHE COLLECTION FUND    
    Revenue AccountRevenue AccountRevenue AccountRevenue Account    

2010/112010/112010/112010/11

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000 NoteNoteNoteNote

Business RatesBusiness RatesBusiness RatesBusiness Rates Council TaxCouncil TaxCouncil TaxCouncil Tax TotalTotalTotalTotal

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome

(57,302)         Income from Council Tax (57,503)         (57,503)         

Transfers from General Fund -                  

(4,820)            -  Council Tax Benefits (4,752)          (4,752)          

(1)                  -  Transitional Relief (1)                (1)                

(62,123)         -                  (62,256)         (62,256)         

(27,894)          Income collectable - Business 

Ratepayers 

(28,762)         (28,762)         

(90,017)(90,017)(90,017)(90,017)                                (28,762)(28,762)(28,762)(28,762)                                (62,256)(62,256)(62,256)(62,256)                                (91,018)(91,018)(91,018)(91,018)                                

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure

60,933          61,414          61,414          3333                            

-                  National Non Domestic Rates -                  

27,605            -  Payment to National Pool 28,659          28,659          

164                -  Costs of Collection 164              164              

345              
 Change in provision bad/doubtful 

debts - Council Tax 

94                78              172              

             (181)  Bad debts written off              (155) (44)             (199)             

88,86688,86688,86688,866                                    28,76228,76228,76228,762                                    61,44861,44861,44861,448                                    90,21090,21090,21090,210                                    

(1,151)(1,151)(1,151)(1,151)                                        (Surplus) / Deficit for the year(Surplus) / Deficit for the year(Surplus) / Deficit for the year(Surplus) / Deficit for the year ----                                                                    (808)(808)(808)(808)                                                (808)(808)(808)(808)                                                

2011/122011/122011/122011/12

 Precepts & demands on the Collection Fund 

    

    
Appropriation AccountsAppropriation AccountsAppropriation AccountsAppropriation Accounts    
    

2010/112010/112010/112010/11

TotalTotalTotalTotal Business RatesBusiness RatesBusiness RatesBusiness Rates Council TaxCouncil TaxCouncil TaxCouncil Tax TotalTotalTotalTotal NoteNoteNoteNote

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000
16                 Balance brought forward available for 

distribution 

-                  (1,147)          (1,147)          

add
Distribution of Council Tax

Collection Fund deficit

(10)               - Oxfordshire County Council 896 896              

(1)                 - Thames Valley Police Authority 119 119              

(1)                 - West Oxfordshire District Council 106 106              

add
-                  Transfer to General Fund -                  

(1,151)          (Surplus)/Deficit for the year (808)             (808)             

(1,147)(1,147)(1,147)(1,147)                                        Balance carried forwardBalance carried forwardBalance carried forwardBalance carried forward ----                                                                    (834)(834)(834)(834)                                                (834)(834)(834)(834)                                                4444                            

2011/122011/122011/122011/12
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUNDNOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUNDNOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUNDNOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND    
    
Note C1 Business Rate (Note C1 Business Rate (Note C1 Business Rate (Note C1 Business Rate (National NonNational NonNational NonNational Non----DDDDomestic Rates)omestic Rates)omestic Rates)omestic Rates)    
    
Business Rates (Non-Domestic Rates) are based on the rateable value for each property 
multiplied by a nationally determined uniform rate (multiplier).  The total amount collected by 
the Council (subject to certain adjustments) is paid into the National Pool managed by Central 
Government and redistributed to each local authority based on a standard amount per head of 
population.    
 
From the 1st April 2005 a new rating list took effect.  Two separate rate multipliers were set, 
the lower of which is a rate multiplier for those businesses qualifying for small business relief.   
 

2010/20112010/20112010/20112010/2011     2011/20122011/20122011/20122011/2012    

£77,234,552  Non-domestic rating value £77,416,676 
    

40.7p  Small business non-domestic rating multiplier 42.6p 
41.4p  Non-domestic rating multiplier 43.3p 

 
Note C2 Council TaxNote C2 Council TaxNote C2 Council TaxNote C2 Council Tax    
 
Council Tax income is derived from charges according to the value of residential properties. 
Properties are classified into 9 valuation bands (A*-H). The Council as billing authority 
calculates its tax base in accordance with Government Regulations. The number of dwellings is 
modified to take account of various discounts and exemptions allowed and an index is then 
used to calculate the equivalent number of Band D dwellings. The tax base calculation for 
2011/12 is shown below:  

 
Valuation Band Total Dwellings in 

Band
Total Discounts, 
Exemption & 
Second Homes

Total Chargeable 
Dwellings

Weight 
[in 9ths]

Equivalent No of 
Band D Dwellings

A* 0 0.75 0.75 5 0.42

A 1,313 -167.45 1,145.55 6 763.70

B 4,243 -529.7 3,713.30 7 2,888.12

C 15,175 -1,307.70 13,867.30 8 12,326.49

D 9,641 -391.26 9,249.74 9 9,249.74

E 6,654 -386.75 6,267.25 11 7,659.97

F 3,593 -156.5 3,436.50 13 4,963.83

G 2,337 -102.7 2,234.30 15 3,723.83

H 322 -29.7 292.30 18 584.60

Total 43,278 -3,071 40,206.99 42,160.71

98.00%

901.50

42,219.00

Plus Contribution in Lieu (MOD)

Tax base for 2011/12Tax base for 2011/12Tax base for 2011/12Tax base for 2011/12

Collection rate %

 
The estimated collection rate for 2011/12 was 98%, giving a Council Tax Base of 42,219 
(41,906.20 2010/11). 
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Note C3 Precepts and Demands Made on the Collection FundNote C3 Precepts and Demands Made on the Collection FundNote C3 Precepts and Demands Made on the Collection FundNote C3 Precepts and Demands Made on the Collection Fund    
    

2010/112010/112010/112010/11 2011/122011/122011/122011/12

£'000£'000£'000£'000 £'000£'000£'000£'000

48,683                  Oxfordshire County Council 49,046           

6,466                    Thames Valley Police Authority 6,514             

West Oxfordshire District Council:

2,363                    Parishes 2,406             

3,421                    District 3,446             

60,93360,93360,93360,933                                                                    61,41261,41261,41261,412                                        

    
Note C4Note C4Note C4Note C4 Surplus / Deficit on the Collection Fund Surplus / Deficit on the Collection Fund Surplus / Deficit on the Collection Fund Surplus / Deficit on the Collection Fund    
    
The estimated surplus or deficit in respect of Council Tax at the end of each year is required 
to be distributed to or financed by the District Council, Oxfordshire County Council and the 
Thames Valley Police Authority in the following financial year in accordance with the relative 
amounts of precepts and demands on the Collection Fund.  Community charge surpluses or 
deficits are dealt with purely by the District Council.  The distribution of the estimated deficit at 
31 March 2012 is shown in the Collection Fund Appropriations Account.  
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Annual Annual Annual Annual GGGGovernance Statemenovernance Statemenovernance Statemenovernance Statementttt    
    
Scope of ResponsibilityScope of ResponsibilityScope of ResponsibilityScope of Responsibility 
 
West Oxfordshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  West Oxfordshire 
District Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, West Oxfordshire District Council is also responsible 
for proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, which facilitates the effective exercise 
of functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 Regulation 4 (3) formally requires local authorities 
to prepare an Annual Governance Statement. 
 
The Purpose of the The Purpose of the The Purpose of the The Purpose of the Governance FrameworkGovernance FrameworkGovernance FrameworkGovernance Framework    
 
The governance statement covers all significant corporate systems, processes and controls, 
spanning the range of an authority’s activities, including in particular those to ensure that: 
 

≠ The authority’s policies are implemented; 

≠ High-quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 

≠ The authority’s values and ethical standards are met; 

≠ Laws and regulations are complied with; 

≠ Required processes are adhered to; 

≠ Financial statements and other published performance information are accurate 
and reliable; and 

≠ Human, financial, environmental and other resources are managed efficiently 
and effectively. 

  
The governance statement includes all components in the system of internal control.  The 
system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   
 
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of West Oxfordshire District Council’s policies aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The Corporate Management Team (including the S151 Officer), the Monitoring Officer and all 
operational Heads of Service have each signed an assurance statement that adequate controls 
are in place for 2011-12.  
 
An adequate system of internal control has been in place at West Oxfordshire District Council 
for the year ending 31 March 2012. 
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Governance and tGovernance and tGovernance and tGovernance and the Internal Control Environmenthe Internal Control Environmenthe Internal Control Environmenthe Internal Control Environment    
 
A requirement of the system of internal control is the need for sound systems of financial 
management, internal control and risk management.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 
confirm that the Council is responsible for putting these in place and making sure they are 
effective.   
 
The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance has been revised in accordance with the 
2007 CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government and 
embraces the definition of corporate governance. The local code details the six core principles 
of the Good Governance Standard for Public Services against which the authority will measure 
its performance. The Local Code of Corporate Governance was approved by Cabinet in May 
2008 and has been revised in April 2011 and presented to the Audit and General Purposes 
Committee.   
 
The Council maintains an adequate and effective Internal Audit service. The agreed audit plan 
for 2011 – 12 has been duly completed and the reports issued. The Internal Audit Annual 
Report which contains an overall assurance of the adequacy of internal control has been 
published.  The Audit Commission were able to formally place reliance on the work of the 
Internal Auditors during 2011-12. During the year the Council’s internal audit service has been 
delivered through a partnership arrangement with Cheltenham and Cotswold Councils known 
as Audit Cotswolds.  
 
The Council is subject to external review; the external auditor is the Audit Commission who 
provided an annual audit and inspection letter presenting its findings.    
 
There is an effective financial management system in place, the accounts are published annually, 
reviewed and signed off by the Audit Commission.  
 
The Council maintains an ongoing active approach to risk management, maintaining a Risk 
Register and linking risks to actions in service plans and managing them effectively. Corporate 
risks are frequently reviewed by the Management Team and Cabinet and reported via the 
Audit & General Purposes Committee. The embedding of risk management throughout the 
organisation is a continuous improvement process. All Risk Registers are now available online 
on the Council’s intranet to facilitate dynamic update by Services.  
 
The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model for decision making with a Leader, 
Executive Members and three Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
The Constitution sets out how the Council is to be managed.  This includes a set of financial 
and contract regulations and a “Scheme of Delegation” which details decisions Officers can 
make without needing Council approval, as well as the areas of responsibility and procedures 
for Overview and Scrutiny and Non Executive Committees appointed by the Council.  
 
There are two Statutory Officers who have specific responsibilities; the S151 Officer (Strategic 
Director (Resources)) oversees the financial arrangements of the Council [ensuring compliance 
with the five key principles within the CIPFA statement on the role of the Chief Finance Officer 
in public service organisations] whilst the Monitoring Officer deals with legal issues and the 
proper conduct of business. 
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As required by the Local Government Act 2000 the Council has constituted a Standards 
Committee which fulfils its statutory duties in relation to the promotion of good conduct, 
assisting members to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and providing 
training.  The Committee also monitors the outcome of complaints referred to the Local 
Government Ombudsman. 
 
In compliance with guidance from CIPFA and the Audit Commission the Council has an 
independent audit committee (realigning the General Purposes Committee to be the Audit 
and General Purposes Committee), to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the 
risk management framework and associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the 
authority’s financial and non-financial performance and to oversee the financial reporting 
process. This Committee is also supported by the work of the Finance and Management 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee who provide a complimentary scrutiny role. 
 
The Council’s ten year medium term financial strategy sets out the resource constraints the 
Council needs to operate within to deliver strategic aims, whilst  service plans have been 
developed to contribute to strategic outcomes and the performance management framework 
measures delivery progress. 
 
The annual revenue budget is agreed after a series of consultations with each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and public consultation via an on-line web survey. The budget is finally 
agreed in February of each year to enable the level of Council Tax to be set after final grant 
figures are received from government. The revenue budget must fit within the broad context 
of the medium term financial strategy. 
 
Ongoing budgetary control is delivered by the Corporate Finance team with reports delivered 
to Cabinet on a quarterly basis setting out expenditure against both Revenue and Capital 
budgets. Any significant budget variances receive detailed comment for Cabinet’s attention and 
where appropriate mitigating or corrective action is recommended. 
 
Capital expenditure receives particular attention given its scale and nature via the officer 
Capital Programme Working Group which meets to discuss progress on schemes and where 
necessary makes recommendation to Cabinet to re-phase the programme. 
 
The Council continues to contribute to the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) reviewing 
government systems data which is matched by the Audit Commission (now on a website 
access) and investigating anomalies to prevent or detect fraud. An annual fraud survey was also 
undertaken on behalf of the Audit Commission. In addition data matching work has been 
carried out with Capita to validate single occupier discounts for Council Tax across the whole 
of Oxfordshire. 
 
The Strategic Director (Resources) has overall responsibility for ensuring the Council has a safe 
and proper system of financial administration.  The financial procedures within the Constitution 
set how we will manage our financial resources and secure sound financial administration.  
These include how budgets are prepared and funds are controlled and released.  All 
transactions are transparent and significant items drawn to the attention of the Finance and 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee which meets regularly. 
   
The Council’s Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and emergency management plan for the 
community, is in place as compliant with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, covering all of its 
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operations, and has been reviewed by Internal Audit and has been the subject of desktop 
training exercises in liaison with the County Council Emergency Planning Team. The Emergency 
Plan has been refreshed during 2011-12. 
 
The Council’s Vision and Priorities developed in 2007 have been incorporated into a Council 
Plan and have been subject to annual refresh processes.  These top level objectives are set out 
in the Delivery Plan with key milestones and performance measures attached which are 
subsequently reported to the Executive and Scrutiny Committees quarterly. New Priorities 
have been developed which reaffirms the Council’s Vision.  
 
‘Shaping Futures’ the Sustainable Community Strategy for the district sets out the delivery 
aspirations for local communities based upon a comprehensive evidence base and widespread 
consultation including with harder to reach groups, either directly e.g. young people, or through 
representative organisations e.g. Citizens Advice Bureau. The Delivery Plan for the Strategy is 
reviewed and updated annually. The Council Plan links into this strategy and its outcomes. 
 
A new Corporate Improvement Programme is currently being developed and the Council 
continues to participate in the ‘Even Better Place To Work’ scheme to assess and manage 
employee satisfaction and motivation levels.  
 
The Council continues to pursue value for money in its procurement of goods and services, 
working closely with the Oxfordshire Districts Procurement Hub and its partners with the GO 
Shared Services partnership to deliver benefits of efficiency and effectiveness. The Council has 
also taken advantage of national framework agreements. The Council took the lead on 
undertaking a procurement process to provide reactive and planned maintenance services for 
all Councils across Oxfordshire and Cotswold DC.  
 
Shared service arrangements with Cotswold District Council and other authorities have 
continued to be developed during 2011-12 both at Senior Management level and cascading 
down to operational Service levels with savings reaching the levels targeted in the original 
business case report. These included the GO Shared Service, Joint ICT, Joint Legal and Audit 
Cotswolds. 
 
Review of EffectivenReview of EffectivenReview of EffectivenReview of Effectivenessessessess    
 
Council’s are expected to test their structures against the six core principles and supporting 
principles by reviewing their existing governance arrangements against the framework, having 
developed and maintained an up to date Local Code of Corporate Governance, including 
arrangements for ensuring its ongoing application and effectiveness. 
 
West Oxfordshire District Council has reviewed and revised its Local Code of Corporate 
Governance to adopt the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 2007 definitions. The six core principles 
and supporting principles are adopted as the ongoing measure of effectiveness and the Council 
recognises that effective local government relies on establishing and maintaining the public’s 
confidence in both elected members and officers and the credibility of the services provided. 
 
 
Key Principle 1: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community Key Principle 1: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community Key Principle 1: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community Key Principle 1: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community 
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.     
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The Council determined to keep its Vision and Priorities statement and Council Plan broadly in 
line with previous years pending potential changes as the new governments Localism and Big 
Society agenda unfolded. 
 
The suite of performance indicators linked to the Council key priorities continues to be 
monitored by the Cabinet on a quarterly basis to ensure that outcomes required as set out in 
the Council Plan are being delivered or action being taken to ensure they will be delivered. 
These were reviewed in 2011/12 as a response to Government’s decision to drop a large 
number of national performance indicators. 
 
The Council continues to set its objective to maintain Council Tax at a low level (currently 
second-lowest in the country) with its focus on operational efficiencies. 
    
Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle 2222: : : : Members and officers workingMembers and officers workingMembers and officers workingMembers and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with  together to achieve a common purpose with  together to achieve a common purpose with  together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and rolesclearly defined functions and rolesclearly defined functions and rolesclearly defined functions and roles. . . .     
 
The Council’s Constitution sets out how the Council operates and how decisions are made. 
The Articles of the Constitution set out the detail of how key parts of the Council operate, 
also the composition of the Council, and the rights of the public. It details the composition and 
Members of the Council and its Code of Conduct, composition of committees, Council 
meetings and how decisions are made. In 2011/12 as a result of the newly formed GO 
Partnership arrangements the Councils Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Rules were 
revised to align them with the other partner organisations.  
 
There are clear definitions of executive and non-executive functions and there is a separate 
scrutiny function which monitors the decisions of the executive and supports the Council as a 
whole. 
 
Officers implement the Members’ decisions, provide advice and manage the day to day delivery 
of services. The rights of the public in their dealings with the Council are detailed in the 
Constitution; the public has additional rights where using council services. 
 
Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle 3333: : : : Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conductgovernance through upholding high standards of conductgovernance through upholding high standards of conductgovernance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. and behaviour. and behaviour. and behaviour.        
 
The Council has a Standards Committee which oversees conduct and ethics and ensures high 
standards in the way that duties are performed although these arrangements are due to change 
in the near future due to legislative changes. 
 
There is a Local Code of Conduct as originally required by the Local Government Act 2000, 
and during 2007 a statutory instrument was issued for local authorities to adopt a revised 
Model Code. The Standards Committee duly recommended adoption of the Code for the 
Council and training/briefing sessions were held. The Code was also adopted by Town and 
Parish Councils in West Oxfordshire. 
 
The Constitution sets out full detailed Codes of Conduct and information on Members’ Roles, 
and also an Officers Code of Conduct and relationships. There is a Gifts and Hospitality 
Register to safeguard the perception of probity of the Council. 
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The Standards Committee met regularly during 2011 and received the annual letter from the 
Local Government Ombudsman and reports from the Monitoring Officer. The Standards 
Hearing Panel hears allegations of breach of conduct under the Local Government Act 2000 
and the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008.   
 
Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle 4:4:4:4:    Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective to effective to effective to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk.scrutiny and managing risk.scrutiny and managing risk.scrutiny and managing risk.        
 
The Executive (Cabinet) is responsible for most day to day decisions which are in line with the 
Council’s overall policies and budget; matters outside of this remit are referred to the whole 
Council. 
 
There are three overview and scrutiny committees which monitor the decisions and support 
the Council as a whole. A review of Overview and Scrutiny arrangements completed during 
2008-09 was duly implemented and all of these scrutiny committees have taken steps to 
increase the visibility and effectiveness of scrutiny outcomes. 
 
The Council has an active risk management policy and strategy. Risk Registers are completed 
for all Services and have been reviewed and updated during 2011/12. There is a Risk Register 
for corporate risks incorporating key partnership projects and all service risks. 
  
Corporate risks are reviewed by the Management Team and Cabinet on a quarterly basis and 
reported to Audit & General Purposes Committee. There is an active Risk Management Group 
which meets regularly, reviewing corporate, project and service based risks and updating the 
Risk Registers. A composite Risk Register has been developed on the intranet for visibility and 
on-line update throughout the organisation, and is currently being populated with all risks.  
 
In 2011/12 the terms of reference for the Risk Management Group was expanded to 
incorporate corporate governance. This group has the responsibility for reviewing the Local 
Code of Corporate Governance and the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
 Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle 5:5:5:5:    Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.        
 
The Council operates a comprehensive internal training programme for officers and Members 
utilising both in-house and external resources.  
 
The Council continues to develop and publish employment policies operating both effectively 
and legally. 
  
The Council has recently recruited a number of apprentices, in areas such as ICT, Revenues 
and Benefits and Environmental and Commercial Services, using an approach that suits the 
Council’s needs rather than the national scheme.  
 
Shared senior officer and service arrangements have continued to be developed with Cotswold 
District Council with activity cascading down to operational service levels. 
 
The Even Better change programme was established in 2011/12 and the projects that will sit 
within this are currently being developed along with the delivery and monitoring mechanisms. 
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Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle Key Principle 6:6:6:6:    Engaging with local people and other stakeholdEngaging with local people and other stakeholdEngaging with local people and other stakeholdEngaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust ers to ensure robust ers to ensure robust ers to ensure robust 
accountability.accountability.accountability.accountability.    
    
One of the key revised priorities of the Council is to ‘work in partnership to sustain vibrant, 
healthy and economically prosperous towns and villages with full employment’, and partnership 
activities detailed in the Council Plan work towards that goal, whilst engaging local people and 
local institutional stakeholders with accountability to the public. 
 
The Council has approved a policy on partnership working and is committed to working in 
partnership to the benefit of the residents of the district and to provide high quality, value for 
money services. The Council has formed partnerships working at both strategic and operational 
level, to optimise opportunities to achieve its corporate priorities.  
 
The West Oxfordshire Community Strategy sets out the community’s aspirations and the 
Council Plan links directly into this and shares many of the strategic outcomes. In developing 
the Community Strategy the Council has undertaken extensive market research, consultation 
and community engagement with local communities and stakeholders to ensure the priorities 
meet local needs and aspirations.  
 
The Local Development Framework sets out the Planning strategy, policies and proposals for 
the District. Following public consultation in 2009, 2010 and 2011 on the emerging Core 
Strategy, responses were assessed and further work progressed to test main strategic options 
for future development.    Additional technical studies were published    including on transport, 
landscape, flood risk, renewable energy and affordable housing viability. At the beginning of 
2011 the Council’s Draft Core Strategy was published for debate prior to it being finalised. 
Planning documents and consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website. Work 
is ongoing following various significant changes which have delayed the finalisation of the Core 
Strategy in respect of which it is anticipated that further consultation will be carried out later in 
the year. 
 
All of the project activities outlined in the Corporate Improvement Programme – ‘Even Better’ 
incorporated commitment and involvement from the staff of West Oxfordshire at all levels to 
jointly achieve the aims and objectives, and there have been regular communication and 
feedback sessions involving all staff to ensure open and comprehensive communications. 
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Significant Governance IssuesSignificant Governance IssuesSignificant Governance IssuesSignificant Governance Issues    
 

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of effectiveness of the 
governance framework by the Risk Management Group, and a plan to address any weaknesses 
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.  
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address any matters to further enhance 
our governance arrangements where necessary. We are satisfied that these steps will address 
any need for improvements that were identified in our review effectiveness and will monitor 
their implementation and operation as part of our annual review. 
 

 
 

Signature    Date 27 September 2012  
   David Neudegg 
   Chief Executive 
 

 
 

 
Signature       Date   27 September 2012 
 
   Barry Norton 
   Leader of the Council 
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Independent Auditor’s ReportIndependent Auditor’s ReportIndependent Auditor’s ReportIndependent Auditor’s Report    
    
Opinion on the Authority Opinion on the Authority Opinion on the Authority Opinion on the Authority financialfinancialfinancialfinancial statements statements statements statements    
 
I have audited the financial statements of West Oxfordshire District Council for the year ended 
31 March 2012 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the 
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and Collection Fund and the related notes. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2011/12. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of West Oxfordshire District Council in accordance 
with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in 
paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 
the Audit Commission in March 2010. 
 
Respective responsibiliRespective responsibiliRespective responsibiliRespective responsibilities of the ties of the ties of the ties of the Strategic Director, ResourcesStrategic Director, ResourcesStrategic Director, ResourcesStrategic Director, Resources and auditor and auditor and auditor and auditor    
    
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Strategic Director, Resources Responsibilities, 
the Strategic Director, Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit 
and express an opinion on the accounting statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to comply 
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statementsScope of the audit of the financial statementsScope of the audit of the financial statementsScope of the audit of the financial statements    
    
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the Strategic Director, Resources; and the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the 
explanatory foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. 
If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies I consider the 
implications for my report. 
 
Opinion on Opinion on Opinion on Opinion on financialfinancialfinancialfinancial statements statements statements statements    
    
In my opinion the financial statements: 

≠ give a true and fair view of the financial position of West Oxfordshire District Council 
as at 31 March 2012 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

≠ have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12. 
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Opinion on other mattersOpinion on other mattersOpinion on other mattersOpinion on other matters    
    
In my opinion, the information given in the explanatory foreword for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the accounting statements. 
 
Matters on which I report bMatters on which I report bMatters on which I report bMatters on which I report by exceptiony exceptiony exceptiony exception    
    
I report to you if: 

≠ in my opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by 
CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; 

≠ I issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998; 

≠ I designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation 
as one that requires the Authority to consider it at a public meeting and to decide 
what action to take in response; or 

≠ I exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 
1998. 

 
I have nothing to report in these respects. 
    
Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resourcesresourcesresourcesresources 
    
Respective resRespective resRespective resRespective responsibilities of the Authority and the auditorponsibilities of the Authority and the auditorponsibilities of the Authority and the auditorponsibilities of the Authority and the auditor    
 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review 
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 
    
I am required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy myself that the Authority 
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report to you 
my conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit 
Commission. 
 
I report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent me from concluding that the 
Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 
 
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resourcesresourcesresourcesresources    
    
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2011, as to whether 
the Authority has proper arrangements for: 

≠ securing financial resilience; and 

≠ challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
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The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for me to consider under 
the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying myself whether the Authority put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ended 31 March 2012. 
 
I planned my work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on my risk 
assessment, I undertook such work as I considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all 
significant respects, the Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
    
ConclusionConclusionConclusionConclusion    
 
On the basis of my work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by 
the Audit Commission in October 2011, I am satisfied that, in all significant respects, West 
Oxfordshire District Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2012. 
 

CertificateCertificateCertificateCertificate 
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of West Oxfordshire District Council 
in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission. 
    

    
Maria Grindley 
District Auditor 
Unit 5, Isis Business Centre,  
Horspath Road 
Cowley OX4 2RD  

September 2012 
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